
                       
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 

January 26, 2015 
6:30 PM 

       City of Norwood Young America,                    
310 West Elm Street, PO Box 59, NYA MN 55368 

(952) 467-1800 
 
 
     1.   Call Meeting of Economic Development Authority to Order 
              1.1   Pledge of Allegiance 
 

2. Approve Agenda 
2.1 Nomination and election of EDA officers – Resolution 1501 
2.2 Approve minutes of November 24, 2014 

 
3. Adjournment 
  

*  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  * 
 
1.   Call Meeting of City Council to Order 
 
2.   Approve Agenda 
 
3. Introductions, Presentations, Proclamations, Awards, and Public Comment (Individuals may 

address the City Council about any non-agenda item of concern.  Speakers must state their name, address, and limit 
their remarks to three minutes.  The City Council will not take official action on these items, but may refer the matter to 
staff for a future report or direct that the matter be scheduled for a future meeting agenda.) 

 

4.   Consent Agenda (NOTE TO THE PUBLIC: All those items listed as part of the Consent Agenda will be approved  
 by a single motion, unless a request to discuss one of those items is made prior to that time.  Anyone present at the  
 meeting may request an item to be removed from the consent agenda.  Please inform the Council when they approve the  
 agenda for this meeting.) 
      

4.1   Approve minutes of January 12, 2015 
       4.2   Approve payment of Claims 

      4.3   Appoint Bruce Mathwig to the NYA EDC – Resolution 2015-03 
      
5.   Public Hearing 
  
6. Old Business  
 6.1   Peace Villa – The Haven Project – Rezoning, Comprehensive Plan Amendment, Lot  
              Split/Combination and Planned Unit Development Plan 

6.2   Request for Proposals for Refuse and Recycling Collection 
 
7.   New Business 
 7.1   Family Dollar Site Plan 
 7.2   Hotel Market Study and Grant Application 
   
 



8.   Council Member Reports 
 
9.   Mayor’s Report 
 
10. Adjournment 

 
 
*The following informational items have been included in the Council packet for informational purposes, council review 

and discussion.  No action is required by the City Council:   
 
 

  
UPCOMING EVENTS 

 
February 9  City Council – 6:30 p.m. 
 
February 12  Senior Advisory Committee – 8:00 a.m. 
 
February 17  Parks and Rec. Commission – 5:30 p.m.; Planning Commission – 7:00 p.m. 
 
February 23  EDA and City Council – 6:30 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
   
 
   
 



 

City of Norwood Young America 
Economic Development Authority 

 
 
 
 
Date: January 26, 2015 

To: Economic Development Authority 

From: Steven Helget, EDA Executive Director  

RE: Election of EDA officers 

 
 

According to Minnesota Statutes, the EDA must annually elect a President, 
Vice-President, Treasurer, Assistant Treasurer, and Secretary and they may 
appoint an Executive Director. 
 
Staff recommendation:  A motion to adopt Resolution 1501, a resolution 
nominating and electing officers of the Economic Development Authority of 
the City of Norwood Young America.   



ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

RESOLUTION  1501 
 

A  RESOLUTION  NOMINATING  AND  ELECTING  OFFICERS 
OF  THE  ECONOMIC  Development  AUTHORITY 
FOR  THE  CITY  OF  NORWOOD  YOUNG  AMERICA 

 
WHEREAS,  the City of Norwood Young America has established an Economic Development 

Authority (EDA) to coordinate and administer economic development and redevelopment plans and 
programs of the City; and 
 

WHEREAS,  the board of commissioners of the EDA consists of five members, all of whom 
must be members of the City Council of the City of Norwood Young America; and 
 

WHEREAS,  pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, the EDA must annually elect a President, Vice-
President, Treasurer, Assistant Treasurer, and Secretary.   
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED,  that the City Administrator is hereby appointed Executive 
Director of the Economic Development Authority of the City of Norwood Young America; and 

 
THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED,  that the following commissioners are 

nominated and elected to the following offices of the Economic Development Authority of the City of 
Norwood Young America: 

 

 President  -  Tina Diedrick 

 Vice-President  - Carol Lagergren    

Treasurer  - Jim Keller 

Assistant Treasurer  – Richard Stolz  

Secretary  - Mike McPadden  

Adopted by the EDA of the City of Norwood Young America this 26th day of January 2015.   
 
 
 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       President 
Attest: 
 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Executive Director 



Norwood Young America Economic Development Authority Meeting Minutes 
November 24, 2014 

 
President Tina Diedrick called meeting to order at 6:32 p.m. 
EDA Present:  Tina Diedrick, Mike McPadden, Jim Keller, Dick Stolz, Carol Lagergren 
EDA Absent:   
City Staff Present:  Executive Director Steve Helget, City Clerk/Treasurer Diane Frauendienst 
Also Present: Norwood Young America Times Reporter Adam Gruenewald, Planning Commission Rep 
Craig Heher, Bond Counsel Martha Ingram, Mike Donnelly, Bobbie Oelfke, Jessica Klaustermeier, Emma 
Klaustermeier, Kali Grimm, Paul Schwichtenberg. 
 
All in attendance stood for the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Approve Agenda:   
Motion: MM/DS, all in favor to approve the Agenda as presented. 
 
Approve minutes of October 27, 2014 
Motion: DS/MM, all in favor to approve the minutes from the EDA meeting on October 27, 2014. 
 
Adjournment 
Motion: DS/MM, all in favor to adjourn at 6:33 p.m.  
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
Diane Frauendienst      
City Clerk      President 
 

 



Norwood Young America City Council Minutes 
January 12, 2015 

 

Council Present:  Tina Diedrick, Mike McPadden, Dick Stolz, Jim Keller, Carol Lagergren  
Council Absent: None 
City Staff Present: City Administrator Steve Helget, City Clerk/Treasurer Diane Frauendienst, Public 
Utilities Director Ryan Winter 
Also Present: NYA Times Reporter Adam Gruenewald, Jake Saulsbury – Bolton & Menk, Craig Heher, 
Deb Gatz, Amanda Finnerty, Ken Mueller, Chris Mueller 
 
Mayor Tina Diedrick called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 
 
All in attendance stood for the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

Approve Agenda 
Motion: MM/DS; all in favor to approve the agenda as presented. 
 
Introductions, Presentations, Proclamations, Awards, and Public Comment:  
None 
 
Introduce Ryan Winter, Public Utilities Director.  Director Winter gave a brief summary of his work 
history and experience. 
  
Consent Agenda  
Motion: CL/JK; all in favor, to approve the consent agenda as presented.   

Approve minutes of December 8, 2014 
  Approve payment of Claims 
       Resolution 2015-02 – amend NYA Volunteer Firefighters Relief Association By-Laws 
       Authorize Request for Proposals (RFP) for Pavilion Liquor License  
       Appoint additional Fire Fighters to the NYA Fire Department 
  Call for Public Hearing to Amend Chapter 2 of NYA City Code 
 
Old Business 
Authorize Request for Proposals for Refuse and Recycling Collection.  Administrator Helget reviewed the 
letter received from the city attorney.  Helget is requesting approval to seek RFPs.  A recommendation 
will be brought back to the Council at the January 26th meeting. 
Motion: CL/MM, all in favor to authorize seeking Requests for Proposals for refuse and recycling 
collection services. 
 
New Business 
Bolton & Menk 2015 Engineering Services & Fee Schedule.  Engineer Jake Saulsbury was at the meeting 
and presented the 2015 Professional Engineering Services Schedule. 
Motion: DS/MM, all in favor to approve the 2015 Professional Engineering Service and Fee Schedule 
with Bolton & Menk, Inc. with Bolton & Menk waiving the $60 per meeting fee. 
 
Resolution 2015-01 - Organization of the City of NYA.  Mayor Diedrick reported that Resolution  
2015-01 is the organization resolution for the city and reviewed each of the appointments. Council 
members suggested some changes which included appointing Mike McPadden to the Stiftungsfest 
Committee and the Economic Development Commission, and Carol Lagergren to the Personnel 
Committee. 
Motion: CL/DS, all in favor to adopt Resolution 2015-01, a resolution relating to the organization of the 
City of Norwood Young America as amended. 
 
Schedule special meeting.  Administrator Helget proposed to schedule a joint workshop meeting with the 
planning commission to discuss blight and public nuisances. 



Motion: CL/MM, all in favor to schedule a special City Council Workshop for 6:30 p.m. on Thursday, 
January 29. 
 
 

Council Member Reports 
MM, CL: No reports 
DS: The Senior Advisory Commission met and LaVonne Kroells was appointed chair person.  They 
continue to work on the Haven/Harbor project. 
JK: He attended a community center meeting.  They are looking to form a not for profit organization as 
they move forward with the planning. 
TD: Reminded everyone of upcoming events including the NYA Chamber Banquet and EDC meeting.   
 
 

Adjournment 
Motion: MM/DS, all in favor to adjourn the meeting at 7:05 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
Diane Frauendienst       
City Clerk-Treasurer      Mayor 

















 
RESOLUTION  2015-03 

 
A resolution appointing Bruce Mathwig to the Norwood Young 

America Economic Development Commission 
 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Norwood Young America has established an Economic Development 
Commission; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Norwood Young America Economic Development Commission 
consists of nine (9) members: one (1) City Council member, one (1) Planning Commission 
member, one (1) representative of the Chamber of Commerce, and up to six (6) members of the 
local community representing, but not limited to, local business and industry; and 
 
WHEREAS, the terms of certain Commissioners have expired or been vacated; and 
 
WHEREAS, the members of said Commission are appointed by the Norwood Young America 
City Council; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Norwood Young America City Council 
appoints Bruce Mathwig to serve on the Economic Development Commission, whose term shall 
expire January 1, 2018.   
 
 
Adopted by the City Council this 26th day of January 2015.  
 
 
      CITY OF NORWOOD YOUNG AMERICA 
 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 

Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Diane Frauendienst 
City Clerk-Treasurer 



 
 
 
 
 
 
To: Honorable Mayor Tina Diedrick 
 Members of the City Council 

NYA Administrator Steve Helget 
 
From: Cynthia Smith Strack, Municipal Development Group, Inc. 
 
Date: January 21, 2015 
 
Re: The Haven: Rezoning Request  
 

 
Applicant:   Peace Villa Inc. 
     
Subject Property Address: 600 Railroad Drive   
 
Property ID: 585300010 

580145150 
 
Request: Rezoning from C-2 General Commercial to R-4 Multiple Family 
 
REQUEST 
The City has received a request to rezone 6.67 (approximate) acres from C-2 General Commercial to R-4 
Multiple Family in conjunction with a development request known as “The Haven”. The Haven development 
proposes 37 units of senior assisted living/memory care within a two story structure to be connected via 
causeway to existing senior apartments to the west. The request required a public hearing of which notice 
was posted, published in the NYA Times, and mailed to property owners within 350 feet of the subject parcel. 
The Planning Commission held the required hearing on January 20th.  
 
EXAMINATION OF REQUEST   
The project is as described in previous reports contained in this same packet. Section 1210.05 of the City 
Code allows for rezoning but doesn’t prescribe specific standards for consideration of rezoning requests. 
 
The Planning Commission when reviewing the request made the following findings:  
 

1. The subject property abuts existing multiple family uses and the proposed use has been designed to 
physically connect to said existing multiple family uses.   
 

2. The subject property and other parcels contained in the Metro West plat are not accessible from 
Highway 212 resulting in problematic access for general commercial uses (motorists required to 
drive through residential or industrial environs to arrive at commercial lots). 
 

3. The proposed land use change is consistent with the goals of the 2008 Comprehensive Plan, 
including but not limited to,  
 

a. Supporting compact and orderly growth of urban development, 
b. Enhancing community and neighborhood livability, 
c. Promotion of a variety of housing types for all of its citizens, 
d. Creating high-quality environments in all residential neighborhoods, and 

25562 Willow Lane ● New Prague, MN 56071● (952) 758-7399 ● Fax: (952) 758-3711 
staff@municipaldevelopmentgroup.com  ●   www.municipaldevelopmentgroup.com 

1 
 

mailto:mdg@bevcomm.net
http://www.municipaldevelopmentgroup.com/


EXHIBIT A 
 
 
 
 
Legal Description: Parcel 1 
Lot 1 of Block 1 of the plat of METRO WEST INDUSTRIAL PARK, City of Norwood Young America 
Minnesota, said plat being of record and on file at the Carver County Recorder’s Office, Carver County, 
Minnesota.  
 
 
Legal Description: Parcel 2  
Part of the Southwest Quarter of the Northeast Quarter of Section 14, Township 115, Range 26, Carver County, 
Minnesota, also being part of the record plat of ROTHFORK’S ADDITION TO NORWOOD, described as 
follows: Commencing at the southwest corner of said Northeast Quarter of Section 14; thence on an assumed 
bearing of North 00 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds East along the West line of said Northeast Quarter 150.43 
feet to a point on the northerly right-of-way line of Old Trunk Highway 212; thence South 82 degrees 12 
minutes 00 seconds East along said northerly right-of-way line Old Trunk Highway 212 a distance of 179.30 
feet to a point on the westerly right-of-way of the now abandoned Railroad; said point being the point of 
beginning of the tract to be described; thence North 12 degrees 42 minutes 00 seconds East along said westerly 
right-of-way line 412.54 feet; thence South 68 degrees 41 minutes 12 seconds East 60.00 feet; thence North 77 
degrees 19 minutes 06 seconds East 45.02 feet to the easterly right-of-way line of the now abandoned Railroad 
and the westerly line of Lot 1, Block 1 of the plat of METRO WEST INDUSTRIAL PARK, said plat being of 
record and on file at the Carver County Recorder’s Office; Carver County, Minnesota; thence South 12 degrees 
42 minutes 00 seconds West along said Easterly right-of-way line of the now abandoned Railroad and said 
westerly line of the plat of METRO WEST INDUSTRIAL PARK a distance of 414.28 feet to the northerly 
right-of-way line of Old Trunk Highway 212; thence North 82 degrees 12 minutes 00 seconds West along said 
northerly right-of-way line 100.37 feet to the point of beginning.  
 
 
 

3 



1 

RESOLUTION NO. 2015-05 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING REZONING OF CERTAIN 
PROPERTY FOR “THE HAVEN”  

 
BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Norwood Young America, Carver County, Minnesota 
as follows: 
 
WHEREAS, Peace Villa, Inc. (the “Applicant”) has applied for rezoning of approximately 6.67 
acres of property from C-2, General Commercial to R-4, Multiple Family Residential to 
accommodate a proposed development project entitled “The Haven”; and 
 
WHEREAS, the subject property is located at 600 Railroad Drive; and 
 
WHEREAS, the subject property numbers are 585300010 and 580145150, the legal descriptions 
of which are attached hereto as Exhibit A; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Haven development consists of 37 senior assisted living/memory care units 
connected to The Harbor via causeway; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Norwood Young America Planning Commission held a public hearing 
to consider the Applicant’s rezoning request during their regular meeting on January 20, 2015; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission recommends the City Council approve the rezoning 
request based on the following findings:  
 

1. The subject property abuts existing multiple family uses that are similar to the proposed 
use and is designed to physically connect to the existing multiple family uses.   
 

2. The subject property and other parcels contained in the Metro West plat are not 
accessible from Highway 212 resulting in problematic access for general commercial 
uses (motorists required to drive through residential or industrial environs to arrive at 
commercial lots). 
 

3. The proposed land use change is consistent with the goals of the 2008 Comprehensive 
Plan, including but not limited to:  
 

a. Supporting compact and orderly growth of urban development; 
b. Enhancing community and neighborhood livability; 
c. Promotion of a variety of housing types for all of its citizens; 
d. Creating high-quality environments in all residential neighborhoods; and 
e. Encouraging expanded choices in housing location and types, and improved 

access to jobs and opportunities. 
 

4. Existing wetlands on site will not be drained, filled, or disturbed.  



2 

5. The proposed land use change will not materially affect any regional housing, 
transportation, utility, or park system as represented in system statements released by the 
Twin Cities Metropolitan Council conjunction with the 2008 Comprehensive Plan 
Update.  

 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of Norwood Young America, Carver 
County, Minnesota, hereby makes and adopts the findings of fact as issued by the Planning 
Commission.  

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Council of Norwood Young America, Carver 
County, Minnesota, hereby approves the Applicant’s request for rezoning from C-2, General 
Commercial to R-4, Multiple Family Residential, effective immediately.  

 
Adopted by the City Council this 26th day of January, 2015. 
     
 
       ____________________________________  

Tina Diedrick, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________                                   
Diane Frauendienst 
City Clerk/Treasurer 
 



EXHIBIT A 

3 

 
 
 
 
Legal Description: Parcel 1 
Lot 1 of Block 1 of the plat of METRO WEST INDUSTRIAL PARK, City of Norwood Young America 
Minnesota, said plat being of record and on file at the Carver County Recorder’s Office, Carver County, 
Minnesota.  
 
 
Legal Description: Parcel 2  
Part of the Southwest Quarter of the Northeast Quarter of Section 14, Township 115, Range 26, Carver County, 
Minnesota, also being part of the record plat of ROTHFORK’S ADDITION TO NORWOOD, described as 
follows: Commencing at the southwest corner of said Northeast Quarter of Section 14; thence on an assumed 
bearing of North 00 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds East along the West line of said Northeast Quarter 150.43 
feet to a point on the northerly right-of-way line of Old Trunk Highway 212; thence South 82 degrees 12 
minutes 00 seconds East along said northerly right-of-way line Old Trunk Highway 212 a distance of 179.30 
feet to a point on the westerly right-of-way of the now abandoned Railroad; said point being the point of 
beginning of the tract to be described; thence North 12 degrees 42 minutes 00 seconds East along said westerly 
right-of-way line 412.54 feet; thence South 68 degrees 41 minutes 12 seconds East 60.00 feet; thence North 77 
degrees 19 minutes 06 seconds East 45.02 feet to the easterly right-of-way line of the now abandoned Railroad 
and the westerly line of Lot 1, Block 1 of the plat of METRO WEST INDUSTRIAL PARK, said plat being of 
record and on file at the Carver County Recorder’s Office; Carver County, Minnesota; thence South 12 degrees 
42 minutes 00 seconds West along said Easterly right-of-way line of the now abandoned Railroad and said 
westerly line of the plat of METRO WEST INDUSTRIAL PARK a distance of 414.28 feet to the northerly 
right-of-way line of Old Trunk Highway 212; thence North 82 degrees 12 minutes 00 seconds West along said 
northerly right-of-way line 100.37 feet to the point of beginning.  
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
To: Honorable Mayor Diedrick 
 Members of the City Council 

NYA Administrator Steve Helget 
 
From: Cynthia Smith Strack, Municipal Development Group, Inc. 
 
Date: January 21, 2015 
 
Re: The Haven: 2008 Comprehensive Plan Amendment  
 

 
Applicant:   Peace Villa Inc. 
     
Subject Property Address: 600 Railroad Drive   
 
Property ID: 585300010 

580145150 
 
Request: Comprehensive Plan Amendment Request 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
The City has received a request to amend the Comprehensive Plan to accommodate a project entitled “The 
Haven At Peace Village”. The Applicant requests the City consider a land use change to the 2008 
Comprehensive Plan allowing the subject parcels to be guided toward medium/high density residential rather 
than general commercial. The Applicant submits the land use change is warranted due to the nature of the 
senior housing uses in the area and the proposed interconnected services envisioned between Peace 
Village, The Harbor, and The Haven.  
 
The Haven At Peace Village project consists of 37 assisted living/memory care units within a 36,000 sf two-
story structure. The facility will employ approximately ten people. The Haven structure is to be physically 
connected by a single story causeway to existing assisted living and senior apartment units at The Harbor 
and Peace Village. The Haven development will also feature access to an adjacent medical clinic via 
sidewalk and pedestrian bridge or boardwalk (over wetland).  
 
The City of NYA is within the Twin Cities Metropolitan Council regional planning area. As such, any 
amendment to the Comprehensive Plan must be submitted to the TCMC for review/approval following City 
Council review/authorization of submittal. Please find attached a completed ‘Comprehensive Plan 
Amendment Submittal Form’. The form and required attachments will be submitted to the TCMC if authorized 
by the City Council. 
  
 
PUBLIC HEARING REQUIRED 
Consideration of an amendment to the Comprehensive Plan requires a public hearing. Accordingly, a notice 
of public hearing was posted, published in the NYA Times, and mailed to property owners within 350 feet of 
the subject parcel. The NYA Planning Commission conducted the public hearing on January 20th.  
 
Comments for and against the proposal were solicited, but none were received.  
 

25562 Willow Lane ● New Prague, MN 56071● (952) 758-7399 ● Fax: (952) 758-3711 
staff@municipaldevelopmentgroup.com  ●   www.municipaldevelopmentgroup.com 

1 
 

mailto:mdg@bevcomm.net
http://www.municipaldevelopmentgroup.com/


EXAMINATION OF REQUEST   
The 2008 Comprehensive Plan guides overall growth and redevelopment within the City of NYA. The Plan 
includes baseline information, goal/policy statements, and forward looking plans for various systems (e.g. 
land use, housing, transportation, utilities, parks). The Plan is a collection of narrative statements, charts, 
maps, and other items. When taken in aggregate the Comprehensive Plan functions as a policy framework 
for decision makers.  
 
Figure 4-1 entitled “Urban Growth Boundary/Future Land Use Map” contained in the 2008 Comprehensive 
Plan guides future development of the ‘Haven’ property to general commercial use. The proposed use is 
multiple family residential which constitutes a land use change. As such, amendment of the 2008 
Comprehensive Plan is required. Said amendment is subject to local review by the Planning Commission 
and City Council with acceptance by the Metropolitan Council (TCMC) prior to final approval by the City 
Council.  
 
The Planning Commission examined the request at a regular meeting on January 20, 2015 and made the 
following findings:  
 

1. The proposed land use change applies to a very minimal amount of acreage, i.e. 6.67 acres.  
 

2. The subject property and other parcels contained in the Metro West plat are not accessible from 
Highway 212 resulting in problematic access for general commercial uses (motorists required to 
drive through residential or industrial environs to arrive at commercial lots). 
 

3. The subject property is within the current municipal service area and currently provided with a full 
complement of municipal services. Drinking water, sanitary sewer, and storm water facilities are 
present at the site. The change in use will not result in a measurable increase in demand for drinking 
water or sanitary sewer systems. Stormwater will be held and treated on site prior to discharge into 
adjacent areas.  

 
4. Adequate capacity exists within the current municipal service area relative to the water production, 

treatment, storage, and distribution system as well as the existing sanitary sewer collection and 
treatment system. 

 
5. The subject property abuts property currently used for medium/high density residential development.  

 
6. The proposed land use change is consistent with the goals of the 2008 Comprehensive Plan, 

including but not limited to,  
 

a. Supporting compact and orderly growth of urban development, 
b. Enhancing community and neighborhood livability, 
c. Promotion of a variety of housing types for all of its citizens, 
d. Creating high-quality environments in all residential neighborhoods, and 
e. Encouraging expanded choices in housing location and types, and improved access to jobs 

and opportunities. 
 

7. The proposed land use change will result in a decrease in forecast trip generation and thereby not 
negatively impact existing/planned transportation facilities.  

 
8. The proposed land use change will not materially affect any current or planned open space, 

parkland, or trail system.  
 

9. Existing wetlands on site will not be drained, filled, or disturbed.  
 

25562 Willow Lane ● New Prague, MN 56071● (952) 758-7399 ● Fax: (952) 758-3711 
staff@municipaldevelopmentgroup.com  ●   www.municipaldevelopmentgroup.com 

2 
 

mailto:mdg@bevcomm.net
http://www.municipaldevelopmentgroup.com/


10. The proposed land use change will not materially affect any regional housing, transportation, utility, 
or park system as represented in system statements released by the TCMC in conjunction with the 
2008 Comprehensive Plan Update.  

 
RECOMMENDATION   
The Planning Commission held the required public hearing on the Comprehensive Plan amendment request. 
The Planning Commission then discussed the amendment request.  
 
As the planning agent for the City of NYA the Commission approved a motion recommending the City 
Council approve the amendment and authorize submittal to the TCMC based on aforementioned findings. 
 
 
ACTION 
The City Council shall consider the amendment request. Following discussion the City Council shall consider 
whether or not to submit the formal request to the Twin Cities Metropolitan Council. The attached 
RESOLUTION is offered for Council consideration.   
 
 
ATTACHMENTS   
 

1. Location Map 
2. Comprehensive Plan Amendment Submittal Form 
3. Resolution Approving Formal Submittal of “The Haven” Comprehensive Plan Amendment Request to 

the Metropolitan Council 

25562 Willow Lane ● New Prague, MN 56071● (952) 758-7399 ● Fax: (952) 758-3711 
staff@municipaldevelopmentgroup.com  ●   www.municipaldevelopmentgroup.com 

3 
 

mailto:mdg@bevcomm.net
http://www.municipaldevelopmentgroup.com/


 

PROPOSED SITE 



Comprehensive Plan Amendment Submittal Form 

Comprehensive Plan Amendment Submittal Form 
 
Please complete the following information. When completing this form electronically, fields in grey need your input. 
Use the Tab key to quickly navigate to each field. Question 37 on the last page of this form is for MUSA Expansions or 
Changes only and does not contain grey fields, but is directly editable. The form for Question 37 is also available in 
Excel format. http://www.metrocouncil.org/planning/assistance/resources.htm 
 
This form is available in electronic format on the Metropolitan Council’s website: 
http://www.metrocouncil.org/planning/assistance/resources.htm.  
 

AMENDMENT NAME The Haven - NYA 
 

COMMUNITY PROFILE AND AMENDMENT OVERVIEW 
 

1. Please provide the following information: 

Local governmental unit: City of Norwood Young America 

Contact name: Cynthia Smith Strack 

Contact title: Consulting Planner 

Address: 310 Elm Street West 

City, State, Zip: Norwood Young America MN 55368 

Telephone number: (612) 232-7399 

FAX number: (888) 763-4462 

Email address: cstrack@municipaldevelopmentgroup.com 

Date of preparation: December 26, 2014 
 

2. Identify the type of amendment and describe. Check all that apply: 
 

 2a. Land use change: Approximately 6.7 acres guided in 2008 CPU to commercial proposed for MF residential 
(senior assisted living [25 units] and memory care [12 units])  

 2b. MUSA expansion or change:       
 2c. Text Change:       
 2d. Other:       

 

3. Provide a description of the amendment: 

Location: 600 Railroad Drive 

Brief description: 

Land use change is proposed. Request is to amend future land use for less than seven acres to allow 
for the construction of a 35 unit senior assisted living facility at the aforementioned address. The 
facility will consist of 25 assisted living rooms and 12 memory care rooms. The subject property is 
currently guided for commercial use and proposed for rezoning to multiple family residential use. The 
proposed use would be physically connected to an existing senior living complex to the west.  

Affected area, in acres: Approximately 6.7 acres 

Number of housing units in CPA area, if any: None at this time. Proposed 35 unit (attached) MF senior facility 
with skilled nursing care provided around the clock   

  

May 2011  1 

http://www.metrocouncil.org/planning/assistance/resources.htm
http://www.metrocouncil.org/planning/assistance/resources.htm


Comprehensive Plan Amendment Submittal Form 

 
SECTION 1: PROCESS OVERVIEW  http://www.metrocouncil.org/planning/LPH/LPHSect1.pdf 

 

4. Indicate the official local status of the plan amendment. Check all that apply.  
NOTE: The local governing body must take action on the proposed amendment before submittal to the 
Metropolitan Council. 
 

 Action Date of Action 

 Acted upon by the planning commission. January 20, 2015 
 Approved by governing body, contingent upon 

Metropolitan Council review January 26, 2015 
 
5. List the adjacent local governments, school districts, and other jurisdictions that were 
contacted and the date the copies were sent. Notifying adjacent governmental units and affected 
school districts is one of the criteria the Council will use to determine whether an application is deemed 
complete for review. 

WAIVED 

6. Identify outstanding issues or conditions made in the Metropolitan Council’s review of the 
municipality’s 2030 Comprehensive Plan Update or subsequent comprehensive plan 
amendments: 
 

 The Council’s review(s) did not identify any issues or conditions. 

 The Council’s review(s) identified the following issues/conditions: 
 

Issue/Condition Steps taken or future planned actions, including date 

            

            

            

            

            

 

7. Will/has and environmental review (Environmental Assessment Worksheet, Environmental 
Impact Statement, or Alternative Urban Areawide Review) be/been completed for this site? 
 

 No, none required. 
 Yes. Indicate the type of review and approximate date of completion. If completed, include a 

summary of the findings below: 
      

May 2011  2 

http://www.metrocouncil.org/planning/LPH/LPHSect1.pdf


Comprehensive Plan Amendment Submittal Form 

SECTION 2: FORECASTS http://www.metrocouncil.org/planning/LPH/LPHSect2.pdf 
 

8. Does the plan amendment change the population, household, or employment forecasts that 
appear in the Metropolitan Council’s published forecast tables? Published forecast tables can be 
found online on the Council’s website: http://www.metrocouncil.org/metroarea/stats.htm. Please note 
that the Council’s practice is to round forecasts to the nearest hundred. 
 

 No, no change in community-level forecasts. This plan amendment enables development that is 
already assumed in current, approved forecasts. 

 Yes. Identify the net changes to community-level forecasts in the table below: 
 

Net Changes to Community-level Forecasts (additions or reductions due to the amendment) 

 2010 2020 2030 

Population                   

Households                   

Employment                   

 
SECTION 3: LAND USE  http://www.metrocouncil.org/planning/LPH/LPHSect3.pdf 

 

9. Does the plan amendment propose any impacts to wetlands located on the site? 
 

 No wetlands on the site. 

 No, no impacts to wetlands located on the site. 

 Yes. Describe the type of wetland(s), potential impacts, and mitigation plans below: 

      

10. Describe land use changes in acres applicable to this amendment site in the table below. 
Use the community’s land use categories as contained in the local comprehensive plan. 
 

 Not applicable. No land use changes proposed. 
 

Land Use Designation (fill in 
the community’s specific land 
use categories) 

All Land Uses in CPA Area Residential Land Uses Only 
Acres # of Units & Density Range 

Pre-CPA Post-CPA Pre-CPA Post-CPA 
Medium to High Density Residential 0 6.67 0 35 units; 5.24 du/ac 

General Commercial  6.67 0             

                              

                              

                              

Totals                         
CPA = Comprehensive Plan Amendment 

May 2011  3 

http://www.metrocouncil.org/planning/LPH/LPHSect2.pdf
http://www.metrocouncil.org/metroarea/stats.htm
http://www.metrocouncil.org/planning/LPH/LPHSect3.pdf


Comprehensive Plan Amendment Submittal Form 

11. Housing: If the proposed amendment changes the amount of land city-wide staged for 
development for the 2011-2020 timeframe for medium density, high density, or mixed use residential 
development, complete the following table to identify the amount of land available pre- and post-
amendment. 
 

Fill in all land use categories 
that allow multi-family 

residential development 

Acres city-wide for each land use 
category  
Pre-CPA 

Acres city-wide for each 
land use category 

Post-CPA 

Total Acres 
Developed 

Acres 
Developable 

Acres* 
Amendment 

Acres** 
Developable 

Acres 
A B A – B = C D C + D = E 

Low/Medium Density Residential 1,184 685 499 0 499 

Medium/High Density Residential 19 4 15 6.67 8.33 

Mixed Use, Primarily Residential  0 0 0 0 0 

                                    

                                    
* Developable means land planned for urban residential development, infill, or redevelopment for the 2011-2020 timeframe. 
** Amendment acres from the municipality’s response to Question #10 above. 

12. Mississippi River Critical Area / MNRRA: Does the proposed amendment include any land within 
the designated Mississippi National River and Recreation Area (MNRRA) and Critical Area boundaries? 
 

 No. Not a community with CA / MNRRA boundaries or project site is not within CA / MNRRA 
boundaries. 

 Yes. Describe below how Critical Area guidelines and MNRRA Comprehensive Management Plan 
policies are being addressed with this amendment. 

      

SECTION 4: TRANSPORTATION http://www.metrocouncil.org/planning/LPH/LPHSect4.pdf 
 

13. Trip Generation: Complete the table below using the most recent edition of the Institute of 
Transportation Engineers Trip Generation Manual to show whether this plan amendment increases or 
decreases trip generation compared to the planned land use and transportation element of the 
community’s comprehensive plan. 
 

 
Trip Generation for the Site 

Based on Planned Land Use 
Pre-Amendment 

Trip Generation for the Site 
Based on Planned Land Use 

Post-Amendment 
Estimated average daily traffic 1300 100 

Estimated peak hour traffic 130 16 
 

14. Will these changes require improvements to the existing local and regional road network 
or to interchanges beyond what is in the community’s current transportation plan? 
 

 No, existing local and regional road networks can accommodate increase. 

 Yes, improvements are needed. Describe improvements and who will pay for them below: 

      

 

May 2011  4 

http://www.metrocouncil.org/planning/LPH/LPHSect4.pdf


Comprehensive Plan Amendment Submittal Form 

Access 
 

15. If this site has direct access to a Principal or “A” Minor Arterial, is the location and 
spacing consistent with applicable County guidelines or MnDOT’s Access Management 
Guidelines? (http://www.oim.dot/state.mn.us/access/index.html)  
 

 Not applicable. No direct access to a Principal or “A” Minor Arterial. 

 No. Explain:        

 Yes. Describe below: 

      

16. Will the amendment increase or decrease by 10% or more the 2030 forecasted 
households, population, or employment forecasts allocated to the development’s Traffic 
Analysis Zone (TAZ)? 
 

 Yes.  No. If Yes, explain below: 

      

Transit and Other Modes of Transportation 
 

17. Is the amendment likely to have any impact, positive or negative, on transit service? 
 

 No, not currently served by transit or will not affect transit. 

 Yes. List existing routes, describe changes, and identify proposed/necessary transit facility 
improvements (e.g. shelters, park & rides, etc) below: 

      

18. Does the amendment include Traffic Demand Management (TDM) strategies or land use 
and urban design measures, if applicable? 
 

 Yes.   No.   

If No, explain why not. If Yes, describe below (e.g. car and van pooling, flexible work hours, mixed land 
uses that discourage vehicle trips and promote walking, biking, ridesharing, and transit): 

Minor amendment. Proposal is a total of 35 assisted living & memory care units and less than ten (10) employees. Lower 
traffic generation as a result of amendment.  

19. Does the amendment include any pedestrian or bicycle access or facilities? 
 

 Yes.   No.  If No, explain why not. If yes, describe access/facilities below: 

Enclosed causeway to connect proposed facility to existing senior living communities. In addition boardwalk planned to 
connect the proposed facility to nearby medical clinic. Neither will be connected to a regional system.  

 
May 2011  5 

http://www.oim.dot/state.mn.us/access/index.html


Comprehensive Plan Amendment Submittal Form 

Aviation 
 

20. Does the amendment affect any airport functions? 
 

 Not applicable. Site is not within airport compatibility area or search area. 

 No. The site is within airport compatibility area or search area, but no impacts. Explain below: 

      

 Yes. The CPA site is within an airport compatibility area or search area, and experiences off-airport 
impacts related to the following: 

  Aircraft Noise. Describe whether the community has adopted land use compatibility guidelines, 
including preventive and corrective noise abatement and/or mitigation measures being applied. 

        

  Airport Safety Zoning. Indicate whether the community participates on a joint 
airport/community zoning board, has an approved airport zoning ordinance, and how those 
requirements relate to the proposal. 

        

  Airport Infrastructure. Describe how the proposal affects or is affected by the provision of 
services or facilities to the airport (e.g. roads, utilities, police/fire, etc.). 

        

SECTION 5: WATER RESOURCES http://www.metrocouncil.org/planning/LPH/LPHSect5.pdf 
 

Wastewater 
 

21. What type of wastewater treatment will be used to serve the proposed amendment? 
 

 Individual Sewage Treatment System (ISTS) 

 Privately Owned / Community Treatment System 

 Local / Municipal Owned Wastewater Treatment Plant 

 Regional Wastewater Treatment 

 
22. Wastewater Flow: Complete the following table to show whether the amendment increases or 
decreases wastewater flow compared to the currently planned land use and sewer flow projections. 
 

Year Total Community Flow 
Pre-Amendment (mgd) 

Total Community Flow 
Post-Amendment (mgd) 

2010 .68 .68 

2020 1.08 1.08 

2030 1.55 1.55 
mgd = million gallons per day 

 

May 2011  6 

http://www.metrocouncil.org/planning/LPH/LPHSect5.pdf


Comprehensive Plan Amendment Submittal Form 

23. Does the local wastewater system have adequate capacity or staged capacity to 
accommodate the proposed amendment? 
 

 Yes.  No. Explain response below: 

The local wastewater system (conveyence and treatment) has adequate capacity to accommodate the proposed amendment. 

24. Does the regional wastewater system have adequate capacity or staged capacity to 
accommodate the proposed amendment? 
 

 Yes.   No. Explain response below: 

      

25. Has the community and/or Metropolitan Council identified an inflow and infiltration (I/I) 
problem? 
 

 Yes.   No. If Yes, describe steps taken to address the I/I issue and plans for action below: 

The City has completed repairs to their collection system and has seen dramatic reductions in influent flow to the treatment 
facility. These recent repairs include over 3,000 feet of cured-in-place-pipe lining and over 50 service lateral linings.  As part 
of the ongoing Infrastructure Management Plan, services have been evaluated as streets have been constructed. Those found 
to have problems have been replaced. Castings have been replaced with watertight castings on several sanitary sewer 
manholes located at street flooding areas. Sump pumps were inspected in the early 1990’s for cross connections. An 
ordinance was passed to prohibit sump pumps connecting to the sanitary sewer system 
26. Identify regional interceptor(s) that will be impacted by these changes and indicate if 
flows will be diverted from one interceptor service area to another below. 

N/A 

27. Does the amendment include any wastewater flow to an adjacent community? For new 
inter-community agreements, the receiving community must also amend the sewer element of its plan. 
 

 Yes. Enclose a copy of the inter-community agreement with the amendment submittal. 

 No. 

 

Surface Water 
 

28. Will stormwater runoff generated from the amendment be treated on-site? 
 

 No. Check one of the following and describe: 

  Runoff will not receive treatment. Describe below: 

 
      

  Runoff will be treated off-site. Identify off-site treatment facility below: 

 
      

 Yes. Describe type and level of on-site pollutant removal treatment/mitigation plans below: 

May 2011  7 



Comprehensive Plan Amendment Submittal Form 

The development will use existing ponding in the area to achieve required volume and rate control parameters. The existing 
ponding and proposed adjustments appear to be adequate to provide volume and rate control for the proposed improvements. 
The plan includes the addition of a bioretention shelf to the existing pond in order to meet current CCWMO and other agency 
standards. 

 

29. Does the community an updated local surface water management plan?  
 

 Yes. Year adopted: 2008  No. Explain below: 

      

30. Does the community have an adopted erosion control or stormwater management 
ordinance? 
 

 Yes. Year adopted: 2008  No. Explain below: 

      

Water Supply 
 

31. Does the community have an updated water supply plan? 
 

 Yes. Year adopted: 2006  No.  

 
32. Will the amendment increase or decrease projected water use from the community’s 
current water supply plan? 
 

 Yes. Provide the water supply plan amendment as an attachment to describe necessary facilities 
improvements or changes. 

 No increase or decrease in projected water use from the water supply plan.  

 

SECTION 6: PARKS http://www.metrocouncil.org/planning/LPH/LPHSect6.pdf 
 

33. Does the amendment include, or is it adjacent to or within ½ mile of an existing or 
planned regional park, reserve, or trail as identified in the Metropolitan Council’s 2030 
Regional Parks Policy Plan? 
 

 Yes.   No.  

If Yes, indicate the name of the regional park, reserve, or trail and describe potential impacts and 
mitigations plans below: 

      

34. Does the community have a Parks & Open Space Plan including regional park elements? 
 

 Yes. Year adopted:  2008  No.  

 
 

May 2011  8 

http://www.metrocouncil.org/planning/LPH/LPHSect6.pdf


Comprehensive Plan Amendment Submittal Form 

 
SECTION 7: IMPLEMENTATION http://www.metrocouncil.org/planning/LPH/LPHSect7.pdf 

 

35. Will the amendment require changes in zoning or subdivision ordinances, the capital 
improvement program (CIP), or other official controls? 
 

 Yes.   No. If Yes, describe proposed changes and timeline for making those changes below: 

Rezoning from C-2 General Commercial to R-4 Multiple Family Residential. Proposed rezoning is consistent with abutting 
parcels zoned R-4.  

36. Does the community have natural resources protection ordinances, including those 
addressing wetlands, tree preservation, or steep slopes? 
 

 Yes.   No. If Yes, identify applicable ordinances below: 

City Code Chapter 13: Wetland Preservation, stormwater management. 
City Code Chapter 12: Land Use regulations, includes specific sections for tree identification/preservation, landscaping, steep 
slope, wetland, and tree identification as part of site review process. 
City Code Chapter 11: Subdivision regulations, includes specific sections relating to identification of natural features, 
topography, open space plans, etc.  
Greenway Plan: Establishes policies and plans relating to interconnection of five enviromental lakes in NYA through a 
greenway.   

 

 

 

 DON’T FORGET! 
 

A complete comprehensive plan 
amendment submittal must include the 

following: 
 
 Completed CPA Submittal Form 
 Staff report regarding CPA 
 Other relevant information related to the 

CPA 
 
And the following color maps: 
 General location of CPA 
 Current planned land use 
 Proposed planned land use change 
 Current sewer staging 
 Proposed sewer staging changes 
 Existing land cover (MLCCS if available) 

May 2011  9 

http://www.metrocouncil.org/planning/LPH/LPHSect7.pdf


 
37. MUSA Expansion or Staging Changes Only. Complete the following table for amendments proposing a MUSA expansion or 
development staging change, documenting both average net density of sewered residential development since the community’s local 2008 
comprehensive plan update was adopted and remaining land guided for residential uses to 2030. This information is needed for the Council 
to review and evaluate the amendment for potential impacts on the regional systems. The following tables are also available on the 
Council’s website in Microsoft Excel format with built-in automatic calculations of net residential acres, net density, and estimated 
developable acres. http://www.metrocouncil.org/planning/assistance/resources.htm.  
NOTE: Communities that participate in the Council’s Plat Monitoring Program do not need to complete this form. Data from 
the Program will be used in place of information here.  
 

Residential Projects Approved and Constructed From Local 2008 CPU Adoption to Present 

Development 
Name 

Year 
Approved 

Year 
Built 

Single 
Family 

# of 
Units 

Multi-
Family 

# of 
Units 

Acres Gross 
Residential 

Acres 
Wetland 
& Water 
Bodies 

Acres 
Public 

Parks & 
Open 
Space 

Acres 
Arterial 
Roads 
ROW 

Acres  
Other 

Undeveloped 
Land* 

Net 
Residential 

Acres 

Net 
Density 

(Units 
/Acre) 

A B C D E F G H = C-D-E-F-
G (A+B)/H 

            
            
            
            
            
            
            
            
            

TOTALS          
* Describe on a separate page any other undeveloped land that does not fall under one of the other categories in the table above, including steep slopes, outlots for future 
residential or commercial development, or other land protected by local ordinances. 
 
Remaining Land Guided for Residential Uses through 2030 

Land Use Category 
Gross Acres 

Estimated Acres 
Wetlands & Water 

Bodies 

Estimated Acres 
Public Parks & 

Open Space 

Estimated 
Developable 

Acres 
Lowest Allowed 

Density 
Highest Allowed 

Density 
A B C D = A-B-C Units/Acre Units/Acre 

       
       
       
       
       
       

 

May 2011  10 

http://www.metrocouncil.org/planning/assistance/resources.htm


RESOLUTION NO. 2015-06 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING FORMAL SUBMITTAL OF 
“THE HAVEN” COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT 

REQUEST TO THE TWIN CITIES METROPOLITAN 
COUNCIL  

 

WHEREAS, Pursuant to Minnesota Statute 462.355 and 473.864; the City shall adopt and amend from 
time to time a comprehensive municipal plan; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Norwood Young America, received a development 
review request from Peace Villa, Inc. (the Applicant) relating to a project entitled “The Haven”; and  
 
WHEREAS, The Haven project request proposes a land use change to the 2008 Comprehensive Plan, 
specifically a change in the future land use classification of approximately 6.67 acres of property from 
general commercial use to multiple family residential use; and 
 
WHEREAS, A public hearing to solicit public comment on the proposed land use change was 
scheduled before the Norwood Young America Planning Commission, the City’s planning agency; and 
 
WHEREAS, A notice of the time, place and purpose of a hearing on the proposed Comprehensive Plan 
was published in the City’s official newspaper at least ten days before the day of the hearing with a 
copy of the notice posted for public viewing; and 
 
WHEREAS, A copy of the proposed Comprehensive Plan amendment was available at the City 
Offices for public review; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Norwood Young America Planning Commission held the public hearing on January 
20, 2015 as described in the public notice; and  
 
WHEREAS, The Planning Commission reviewed the request following the public hearing and 
approved a motion recommending the City Council approve submittal of the Comprehensive Plan 
amendment request to the Twin Cities Metropolitan Council. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the City Council of the City of Norwood Young 
America, Carver County, Minnesota approves the submittal of a Comprehensive Plan amendment 
request entitled “The Haven” to the Twin Cities Metropolitan Council for formal review. 
 
The motion for the adoption of the foregoing resolution was duly made by Council Member  
_______________ , and duly seconded by  Council Member _________________ and upon vote being 
taken thereon, the following voted in favor: 
 
And the following voted against the same: 
 
 



Whereupon said Resolution 2015-06 was declared duly approved and adopted this 26th day of January, 
2015. 
 
 
    
       ____________________________________  

Tina Diedrick, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________                                   
Diane Frauendienst 
City Clerk/Treasurer 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
To: Honorable Mayor Tina Diedrick 
 Members of the City Council 

NYA Administrator Steve Helget 
 
From: Cynthia Smith Strack, Municipal Development Group, Inc. 
 
Date: January 21, 2015 
 
Re: The Haven: PUD Preliminary and Final Plan Approval  
 

 
Applicant:   Peace Villa Inc. 
     
Subject Property Address: 600 Railroad Drive   
 
Property ID: 585300010 

580145150 
 
Request: Preliminary and Final PUD Approval 
 
BACKGROUND  
Section 1240.02 of the City Code provides for development review through a planned unit development 
overlay process. The process is intended to facilitate flexibility in design and siting of projects in instances 
where a public benefit is evident.  
 
The PUD process in NYA is enabled through an overlay district versus rezoning to a planned unit 
development. This means the underlying zoning district allowed uses generally remain intact but may be 
blended. In addition performance standards may be altered to provide for circumstances unique to the 
proposed development in exchange for a public benefit.  
 
The PUD process may or may not involve platting or replatting of property. In the event platting is proposed 
standards relating to subdivision of property (City Code Chapter 11) are also considered during the review 
process.   
 
The “Haven” proposal qualifies for PUD review in that: (a) wetland preservation/protection is proposed and 
(b) the proposal will result in a planned senior housing community that includes integrated senior apartments, 
assisted living units, and memory care units.  
 
The proposed development doesn’t propose replatting/platting of property; and, replatting/platting of property 
is not required under the current code. The proposal does contemplate a lot split and combination. Public 
comments regarding the lot split/combination as required under Section 1100.11, Subd. 1 of the City Code 
has been scheduled will be accepted at the January 20th meeting.  
 
The proposed development includes a single story physical link (causeway) between the proposed ‘Haven’ 
structure and an existing structure (The ‘Harbor’) on an abutting lot under separate fee ownership. The 
proposed development also contemplates physical linkage (privately owned sidewalk) to an existing parking 
lot on an abutting lot under separate fee ownership. As such a shared lot line is proposed. 
 

25562 Willow Lane ● New Prague, MN 56071● (952) 758-7399 ● Fax: (952) 758-3711 
staff@municipaldevelopmentgroup.com  ●   www.municipaldevelopmentgroup.com 

1 
 

mailto:mdg@bevcomm.net
http://www.municipaldevelopmentgroup.com/


The proposed development includes a waiving a portion of a wetland buffer required under Chapter 13 of the 
City Code.  
 
The proposed PUD is a relatively non-complex development and review of both preliminary and final PUD 
plan are appropriate as requested at this time.  
 
 
LOT SPLIT/COMBINATION: EVIDENCE OF LOT COMBINATION SUBMITTED 
The City has received a survey from a registered land surveyor illustrating a proposed split of parcel number 
580145150 and a resulting combination with parcel number 585300010 to the east. Evidence of lot 
combination has been submitted. Both lots resulting from the split of PIN 580145150 meet the minimum lot 
standards within their respective zoning classifications.  
 
 
PRELIMINARY & FINAL PUD PLAN (SITE) 
 
Building Setbacks: Flexibility through PUD Process Requested (zero setback); Approval Recommended by 
Planning Commission. 
 
Setback analysis is represented in the Table 1-1.  

 
Table 1-1 

 

Yard Setback Required Setback Proposed Meets Standard (Y/N) 

Front (east) 35 feet 100+ feet Yes 

Side (street & interior – north)  35 feet, 10 feet 100+ feet from TH 212, 
15 feet from interior lot Yes 

Side (street – south) 35 feet 100+ feet Yes 
Rear (west) 10 feet 100+ feet, zero Yes 

    
A structural connection (i.e. causeway) to existing principal structure on lot under separate fee ownership is 
proposed. The connection can be accommodated through the PUD process. An easement has been granted 
allowing the structure to connect to a lot under different ownership. A construction and maintenance 
agreement has been placed into effect for the shared property/structure.  
 
In addition, a private sidewalk with a bridge over an existing wetland is contemplated. The sidewalk would 
allow residents from the assisted living facility to access an adjacent medical clinic. If approved, bridge 
footings must not interfere with the existing wetland. In addition, since the sidewalk is to traverse property 
under separate legal ownership and cross easement and a construction/maintenance agreement applicable 
to the portion of the sidewalk on Clinic property may be warranted.    
 
Building Height: Meets Standard. 
Maximum building height allowed in the R-4 District 45 feet from average grade at the front of the building to 
the highest point. The structure will be a maximum of 32 feet in height. Proposed height meets district 
requirements.  
 
Lot Standards: Meets Standards.  
Minimum lot size in the R-4 District is 3,000 sf/housekeeping unit equating to 111,000 sf (2.55 acres). The 
proposed site is 6.67 acres. In the R-4 District, minimum lot width is 200 feet, the subject property lot width 
exceeds this requirement.   
 
Maximum lot coverage in the R-4 District is fifty (50) percent. ‘Lot coverage’ is defined as the amount of the 
lot covered by impervious surfaces. The proposed lot coverage is well under fifty percent.   
 

25562 Willow Lane ● New Prague, MN 56071● (952) 758-7399 ● Fax: (952) 758-3711 
staff@municipaldevelopmentgroup.com  ●   www.municipaldevelopmentgroup.com 

2 
 

mailto:mdg@bevcomm.net
http://www.municipaldevelopmentgroup.com/


 
Parking: Shared Campus Parking Arrangement Proposed under PUD – Planning Commission Recommends 
Approval 
 
The site plan illustrates 41 total parking spaces, 39 conventional nine by twenty spaces and two handicap 
accessible spots. Parking lot surfacing of asphalt and perimeter curbing is proposed. 
 
The number of parking stalls required for assisted living communities reverts to demand anticipated by a 
traffic study. The City Engineer’s office provided background analysis/projection in lieu of a traffic study. Input 
from the City Engineer suggests about 60 stalls would likely be sufficient, but that number could be lower if 
parking at the Harbor and Peace Village were used for shared employees and during special events. The 
parking demand analysis performed by the City Engineer included the residential use type and employee 
demand. Flexibility in parking due to shared staff and combined campus-type setting is requested.    
 
Section 1250 also provides for minimum stall length and width and drive aisle width depending on the 
orientation of parking to the curb. The Applicant proposes 90 degree angle parking. Minimum requirements 
are stall width nine feet, stall length 20 feet, and drive aisle width 24 feet. The proposed parking dimensions 
meet or exceed standards required.  
 
Section 1250.05 of the City Code requires parking lots in the R-4 District be a minimum of ten (10) feet from 
any property line. It appears this requirement is met.  
 
Snow storage shall occur adjacent to the proposed parking lot.  
 
Landscaping: Reduction in Number of Trees Required Proposed under PUD – Planning Commission 
Recommends Approval. 
A landscaping plan has been submitted. Section 1255.06 of the Code sets forth landscape requirements for 
multiple family residential buildings. Installation of one (1) tree per dwelling unit is required, resulting in a 
need for 37 trees at the subject site. Efforts to preserve wetlands at the site result in limited areas for tree 
planting. In addition, wetland buffer requirements apply resulting in areas that must be maintained in a 
natural state versus manicured lawn/plantings.  
 
As such the Applicant requests a reduction in the required of the number of trees in conjunction with the PUD 
process and wetland preservation. A total of 12 trees, several shrubs, and foundation plantings are 
represented on the landscape plan. 
 
In addition the Code requires fencing/screening of refuse areas. Architectural documents illustrate the 
installation of a trash/generator enclosure comprised of prefabricated vinyl members at a height of six feet.  
 
Lighting: Meets Standards.  
A lighting/photometric plan was submitted for review with the revised plan set as required under Section 
1245.08, Subd. 1. Follow up discussion with the party responsible for electrical/lighting plan has indicated a 
revised plan will meet requirements. The revised lighting/photometric plan illustrates compliance with Code 
requirements.  
 
Signage: Individual Permit Required. 
Signage shall require a separate permit and is subject to Section 1260 (Signs) of the City Code. This can be 
submitted after review/approval of the development. 
 

25562 Willow Lane ● New Prague, MN 56071● (952) 758-7399 ● Fax: (952) 758-3711 
staff@municipaldevelopmentgroup.com  ●   www.municipaldevelopmentgroup.com 

3 
 

mailto:mdg@bevcomm.net
http://www.municipaldevelopmentgroup.com/


WETLAND PROTECTION: WAIVING A PORTION OF THE WETLAND BUFFER IS REQUESTED – 
PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDS APPROVAL  
Chapter 13, Section 1300.07 of the City Code provides for local protection of wetlands. In part 1300.07 
requires: 
 
Section 1300.07, Subd. 2 establishes a requirement for the installation of wetland buffers within certain 
distances of certain wetlands. As it relates to the subject site the wetland buffer applicable to the southern 
wetland is 35 feet. The buffer applicable to the northwest wetland is 25 feet.  The buffer is to be comprised of 
natural vegetation and is to surround the wetland. The structure is located in a manner that encroaches into 
a required buffer area at the northwest corner of the structure. The Applicant, as part of PUD review requests 
the City Council waive (City Code 1300.01, Subd. 2) the required width of the buffer strip at the northwest 
corner of the building.  
 
The landscape plan illustrates the degree of wetland buffer waiving requested. The landscape plan also 
illustrates seed mixtures to be planted in disturbed areas within said buffer area.  
 
 
ADDITIONAL DEPARTMENT/AGENCY COMMENTS  
 
Public Works: The plans have been forwarded to the Public Works Director Brent Aretz for review and 
comment. Mr. Aretz has reviewed the plans.  
 
Fire Department: The plans have been forwarded to the Fire Chief Steve Zumberge for review and comment. 
The Fire Chief will require installation of two lock boxes, one by each entrance. In addition, a fire suppression 
plan shall be submitted for review and approval by the Fire Chief.  
 
City Engineer: The City Engineer has reviewed the plan submittal. Comments are included in a memo to the 
City Administrator dated December 31, 2015. The memo is included in your packet and the City Engineer will 
be attending the meeting.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING REQUIRED 
Notice of a public hearing has been posted, published, and mailed as required by law. The Planning 
Commission conducted the hearing on January 20th, 2015. No public comments were received.  
 
PLANNING COMMISSION FINDINGS 
 
The Planning Commission finds: 
 

1. Flexibility in site design through the PUD process will preserve environmentally sensitive wetland 
areas. 
 

2. Flexibility in site design through the PUD process will achieve land use and housing goals set forth in 
the Comprehensive Plan related to infill development, cohesive neighborhood design, and variety in 
life cycle housing. 
 

3. The proposed project is compatible with the neighborhood character as evident with the causeway 
connection to senior apartments to the west.  
 

4. The proposed project is consistent with goals and policies contained in the Comprehensive Plan 
especially as related to natural resource preservation and housing. 
 

5. The subject property is within the current municipal service area and currently provided with a full 
complement of municipal services. Drinking water, sanitary sewer, and storm water facilities are 
present at the site. The change in use will not result in a measurable increase in demand for drinking 
water or sanitary sewer systems.  

25562 Willow Lane ● New Prague, MN 56071● (952) 758-7399 ● Fax: (952) 758-3711 
staff@municipaldevelopmentgroup.com  ●   www.municipaldevelopmentgroup.com 

4 
 

mailto:mdg@bevcomm.net
http://www.municipaldevelopmentgroup.com/


 
6. Adequate capacity exists within the current municipal service area relative to the water production, 

treatment, storage, and distribution system as well as the existing sanitary sewer collection and 
treatment system. 

 
7. The subject property abuts property currently used for medium/high density residential development.  

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
The Planning Commission recommends conditional approval of the PUD. The proposed conditions are 
included in a resolution attached to this memo.  
 
ACTION   
Discussion by the Council relating to the PUD is kindly requested. A sample RESOLUTION is attached for 
consideration by the City Council.  
 
ATTACHMENTS   
 

1. Review memo from the City Engineer dated December 31, 2014. 
2. Building rendering. 
3. Site Plan. 
4. Landscape Plan. 
5. Resolution.   

  
 

 

25562 Willow Lane ● New Prague, MN 56071● (952) 758-7399 ● Fax: (952) 758-3711 
staff@municipaldevelopmentgroup.com  ●   www.municipaldevelopmentgroup.com 

5 
 

mailto:mdg@bevcomm.net
http://www.municipaldevelopmentgroup.com/


 

 

December 31, 2014 

 

City of Norwood Young America 

Attn:  Mr. Steve Helget, City Administrator 

310 W. Elm St. 

P.O. Box 59 

Norwood Young America, MN 55368 

 

RE: The Haven at Peace Village  

 Plan Review No. 2 

 

Dear Mr. Helget: 

 

We have completed an engineering review for the above referenced project.  Our review is based upon the 

plans, submitted and prepared by Pope Architects and Campion Engineering Services, baring the general title 

“The Haven at Peace Village, Norwood Young America Minnesota, and dated December 29, 2014.  We offer 

the following comments and recommendations for your consideration: 

 
General: 
 

1) Our review assumes the sanitary sewer service, water service, storm sewer, site grading, and parking 

lot paving, etc. are to be privately owned, operated and maintained.  Our review is generally 

confined to work within and associated with Public Right of Way and City owned facilities, as well 

as grading, drainage and erosion control as it relates to neighboring properties and public Right of 

Way, etc.  Should any of the above assumptions be deemed incorrect, additional review comments 

may be appropriate. 

 

2) Any previous review comments made that have not been addressed by this submittal are still in 

effect. 

 

3) Copies of all required permits, approvals, and agreements, such as NPDES, CCWMO, MPCA, 

MDH, etc. shall be submitted for the project records. 

 

Sanitary Sewer and Watermain: 
 

1) The proposed sewer service appears to have minimal cover throughout its length.  It is recommended 

consideration be given to insulating the entire sewer service where cover is less than 7 feet. 

 

2) The plans indicate the use of “blue” tracer wire access posts and locatable marking tape.  Tracer wire 

access posts and marking tape, etc. shall be colored green in accordance with industry color coding 

standards. 

 

3) The plans indicate the use of a “Rhino” access post on the sanitary service.  This type of access post 

is acceptable.  “Curb Box” style access boxes are also acceptable for this application, in finished 

lawn and landscape areas.  Our office can provide a detail for “curb box” style access boxes, if 

necessary. 

 

4) The plans indicate the extension of a 6” water service to the building.  It is our understanding the 

intent is to split domestic service and sprinkler service inside the building. 



City of Norwood Young America 

RE: The Haven at Peace Village 

December 31, 2014 

Page 2 

 
 

5) The westernmost hydrant appears to be located in close proximity to the building.  The Fire Chief 

should review the proposed hydrant locations. 

 

6) A gate valve should be added at the connection to the existing water service for testing purposes. 

 

7) Gate valves shall include valve box bonnet adaptors and operating nut extension rods in accordance 

with City Standards.  Details are available from our office if necessary. 

 

8) The proposed watermain alignment, and existing service stub are located in close proximity to the 

proposed entrance sign.  It is recommended the horizontal separation between the sign and the utility 

services be maximized to the extent practicable, to avoid the sign being disturbed in the event a 

future service repair excavation is needed.  An adjustment in the proposed sign location may be 

prudent. 

 

9) Any required watermain shut downs or valve operation shall be coordinated with the Public Utilities 

Department. 

 

10) Plans should be submitted to the Fire Chief for review and comment. 

 

Drainage and Grading: 
 

1) Storm sewer calculations for the onsite storm sewer have been submitted.  

 

2) Plans and Storm water calculations should be submitted to CCWMO for review. 

 

3) The plan appears to intend using the existing ponding in the area to achieve required volume and rate 

control parameters.  The existing ponding and proposed adjustments appear to be adequate to 

provide volume and rate control for the proposed improvements. 

 

4) The plan includes the addition of a bioretention shelf to the existing pond in order to meet current 

CCWMO and other agency standards.  We offer the following comments: 

 

a. The detail shown should be revised to use the CCWMO detail 

b. The NWL should be shown on the detail 

c. The filtration media should consist of 70% sand and 30% compost 

d. Tile bedding material should be 1-1 ½” washed rock. 

e. Tile bedding should be 12” thick from top of bedding to tile invert, and include 3-inches of 

¼” washed rock “checker course” 

f. Tile bedding width at the bottom should be 3’ wide. 

 

5) The proposed building and grading area appears to be close to existing wetland edges.  Required 

buffer zone compliance should be verified, and shown on the plan. 

 

6) The plans indicate the construction of a “Link” or causeway between the proposed building and the 

existing Peace Village building to the west.  Previous review comments regarding the causeway have 

not been submitted with this submittal. 

 

7) The plans indicate the replacement of the existing pond discharge pipe located under the causeway 

inside a casing, as discussed in our previous review.  We offer the following comments: 

 



City of Norwood Young America 

RE: The Haven at Peace Village 

December 31, 2014 

Page 3 

 
 

 

a. Details of the proposed construction shall be included in the plans.  Said details include but 

are not limited to casing thickness, material, and strength, casing spacers, location relative to 

footings, method of casing annulus fill, etc. 

 

b. Cathodic protection shall be provided for the steel casing, and shown on the plans. 

 

c. The plans indicate changes in pipe materials along the length of the replaced culvert.  Filed 

joints between differing materials shall not be allowed.  Should it be necessary to change 

pipe materials, a MH shall be installed at the transition location. 

 

d. The plans indicate the use of dual wall HDPE inside the casing.  Joint restraint in this pipe 

material appears to be inadequate for this application.  Carrier pipe shall be RCP CL V with 

stainless steel tie rods at each joint, or PVC with restrained joints, such as Diamond Lok, 

Certa-Lok, Eagle Lok, mechanical joints, fused joints, or equal.  Pipe material and joint 

restraint shall be submitted for review. 

 

e. The casing shall be extended an adequate distance, on both sides of the building, to allow 

future excavation of the casing ends without impacting the building foundation walls, or 

footings, etc. at a minimum slope of 1.5:1, or 15 feet, whichever is greater. 

 

f. The flared ends at each end of the replaced culvert shall be equipped with trash guards, and 

or varmint protection to inhibit debris and varmints from entering the pipe and creating a 

blockage. 

 

g. Site grading and causeway elevations should be evaluated and adjusted accordingly such that 

an emergency overflow elevation is established to reduce potential flooding in the area in the 

event the culvert became clogged with debris, frozen, etc. 

 

h. Considering the discharge pipe will pass through or under the proposed building, and City 

forces will likely be called upon to provide, at a minimum assistance, with maintenance 

activities for the existing pipe, from time to time, it is recommended consideration be given 

to whether or not there is a need for an easement, access agreement, or maintenance 

agreement, etc. between the Owner and the City, that defines responsibilities, access rights, 

liabilities, etc.   

 

8) The plans indicate the use of 18” RCP CL III.  Often 18” CL III availability is minimal.  18” RCP 

should be CL V to ensure availability. 

 

9) There appears to be a typo in the structure schedule for CBMH 1.  The casting should be Neenah R 

3067-V. 

 

SWPPP, Restoration, Erosion Control: 
 

1) A Site Restoration Plan should be submitted, indicating the method of turf establishment location of 

each method, etc. 

 

 

 

 



City of Norwood Young America 

RE: The Haven at Peace Village 

December 31, 2014 

Page 4 

 
 

 

 

2) The submitted SWPPP appears to not include all the information necessary to be in compliance with 

NPDES and CCWMO requirements. Additional information appears to need to be included, 

including but not limited to the following: 

 

a. Chain of Responsibility 

b. Training Documentation 

c. Quantities 

d. Impervious surface information 

e. Final stabilization 

f. Sequencing of work 

 

3) Redundant silt fence is required in locations adjacent to wetlands were the required buffer zone is not 

maintained. 

 

4) Erosion control blankets are recommended on slopes in excess of 4:1, and adjacent to wetlands and 

ponds. 

 

 

Wetlands: 
 

1) The proposed improvements appear to result in no permanent changes to existing wetlands.  As such, 

it is recommended the Owner request a “No Loss” determination from the LGU, TEP, and other 

appropriate agencies. 

 

2) A DNR “Contractor Responsibility Statement” should be provided to the City and other appropriate 

agencies, prior to commencing construction activities. 

 

3) A Joint Wetland Application should be submitted to USACOE, to achieve wetland delineation 

concurrence. 

 

This concludes our review of the submitted information. 

 

Revised Plans as discussed herein, shall be submitted for further review. 

 

We are available to discuss this matter at your convenience. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

BOLTON & MENK, INC. 

 
John K. Swanson 
 
 

Cc:   Cynthia Smith-Strack, MGD, Inc. 

Kreg Schmidt, Bolton & Menk 

Jake Saulsbury, Bolton & Menk 

Paul Moline, CCWMO 

 



Issues and Revisions:

Commission No:

Drawn by:

Checked by:

SHEET

1295 BANDANA BLVD N, SUITE 200

ST. PAUL, MN 55108-2735

(651) 642-9200  |  FAX (651) 642-1101

www.popearch.com

POPE ARCHITECTS

GMP
SUBMITTAL

ADDENDUM #1
12/30/2014

12/30/2014 3:22:02 PM
C:\Revit_Projects\13112_Harbor_r14_tpedersen.rvt

MA-3

3D IMAGE VIEWS

Checker

Author

62112-13112

PEACE VILLA INC.
THE HAVEN AT PEACE

VILLAGE
NORWOOD YOUNG

AMERICA, MN

AERIAL  PERSPECTIVE

BACK SIDE OF MEMORY CARE WING

FRONT MC PERSPECTIVE FRONT PERSPECTIVE

STREET VIEW AT LINK



F
.E

.

F.E.

F.E.

F.E.

F.E.

6

6

7

7

4

4

8

8

9

9

EXISTING ASSISTED LIVING
36 UNITS

NEW
 L

IN
K

NEW 25 UNIT
ASSISTED LIVING

2-STORY

NEW 12 UNIT AL
MEMORY CARE
(1-STORY W/ AL
UNITS ABOVE)

2-STORY

12

41 NEW PARKING STALLS

ENTRANCE TO
SITE

FRONT
ENTRY

EXISTING
DRIVE

EXISTING
WETLAND

EXISTING
WETLAND

EXISTING
WETLAND

W
ETLAND B

O
UNDARY

P
O

W
E

R
 C

O
M

P
A

N
Y

 E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

W
E

T
L
A

N
D

 B
O

U
N

D
A

R
Y

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 W
E

T
L
A

N
D

E RAILROAD STREET

R
A

IL
R

O
A

D
 D

R
IV

E

PROPERTY LINE

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 L
IN

E

PRO
PERTY L

IN
E

PROPERTY LINE

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 L
IN

E

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 L
IN

E

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 L
IN

E

PROPERTY LINE

NEW VINYL
FENCE (6' HIGH)

SIDEWALK TO
CONNECT TO
EXISTING CLINIC

EXISTING CLINIC

EXISTING CLICINC
PARKING

3
2

1

25'-0"
25'-0"

50'-0"

P
O

W
E

R
 C

O
M

P
A

N
Y

 E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

4'-0"

EXISTING BUILDING

13

23

24

36

1

5

5

J

K

L

M

10

DUMPSTER
LOCATION

W
E

T
L
A

N
D

 B
O

U
N

D
A

R
Y

W
E

T
L
A

N
D

 B
O

U
N

D
A

R
Y

WETLAND BOUNDARY

WETLAND BOUNDARY

W
E

T
L
A

N
D

 B
O

U
N

D
A

R
Y

W
E

T
L
A

N
D

 B
O

U
N

D
A

R
Y

37

41

RELOCATE EXISTING
GENERATOR

BUILDING LAYOUT
POINT

1
6
2
'-
1
0
 1

/8
"

152'-2 1/2"

BUILDING LAYOUT
POINT

BUILDING LAYOUT
POINT

FLAGPOLE

A1.2

3

A1.2

6
A1.2

8

P

A1.2

6

TRANSFORMER

GENERATOR

BOLLARDS

VINYL FENCE
ENCLOSURE (6' HIGH)

MONUMENT
SIGN

PED. WALK BRIDGE
OVER WETLAND

1111

ADD ALTERNATE:  PROVIDE A SEPARATE PRICE TO INSTALL A DRAIN TILE SYSTEM
AROUND THE PERIMERTER OF THE ENTIRE BUILDING WITH SUMP PUMP.

1111

BITUMINUOS SIDEWALK:
1 1/2" BITUMINOUS
4" AGGREGATE BASE 100%
CRUSHED (MNDOT3138)

1111

Issues and Revisions:

Commission No:

Drawn by:

Checked by:

SHEET

1295 BANDANA BLVD N, SUITE 200

ST. PAUL, MN 55108-2735

(651) 642-9200  |  FAX (651) 642-1101

www.popearch.com

POPE ARCHITECTS

GMP
SUBMITTAL

ADDENDUM #1
12/30/2014

12/30/2014 2:55:30 PM
C:\Revit_Projects\13112_Harbor_r14_tpedersen.rvt

A1.1

SITE PLAN

Checker

TLP

62112-13112

PEACE VILLA INC.
THE HAVEN AT PEACE

VILLAGE
NORWOOD YOUNG

AMERICA, MN

0'

PROJECT
NORTH

TRUE
NORTH

3015 60 1" = 30'-0"A1.1

1 SITE PLAN

PROJECT DESCRIPTION:

25 UNITS OF ASSISTED LIVING (TWO STORY)
12 UNITS OF MEMORY CARE (ONE STORY)
37-UNITS OF ASSISTED LIVING TOTAL

TOTAL SQUARE FEET - 35,874 SF

1 ADDENDUM 1 12/30/14



W

E

T

L

A

N

D

 

B

O

U

N

D

A

R

Y

NEW VINYL

FENCE (6' HIGH)

WETLAND SEED MIXTURE

W

E

T

L

A

N

D

 
S

E

E

D

M

I
X

T

U

R

E

MESIC SEED MIXTURE

TURF SEED MIXTURE

TURF SEED MIXTURE

MESIC SEED MIXTURE

WETLAND SEED MIXTURE

1.  Landscape contractor shall provide cash escrow or irrevocable letter of credit in the amount required

for completing exterior imporovements by the City of Norwwod Yound America.

2.  Landscape contractor shall inspect the site and become familiar with existing conditions relating to

the nature and scope of work.  If any discrepancies are found, the Landscape Architect shall be

3.  Landscape contractor shall verify plan layout and bring to the attention of the Landscape Architect 

discrepancies which may compromise the design or intent of the layout.

4.  Landscape contractor shall assure compliance with codes and regulations governing the work and

materials supplied.

5.  Landscape contractor shall protect all exisitng roads, curbs/gutters, trails, trees, lawns, and site

elements during construction.  Damage to the same shall be repaired at no cost to the Owner.

6.  Landscape contractor shall verify the location of all utilities above and below grade prior to any

soil disruption or installation.  Provide necessary protection for same before construction begins.

7.  Landscape contractor shall coordinate each phase of installation with General Contractor.

8.  Landscape contractor shall be responsible for on-going maintenance of all installed materials until

time of substancial completion.  Repair and/or replace all damaged materials due to construction

notified prior to construction.  The base information including contours, trails, utilities, curbs, and

building locations were provided by others.  All discrepancies must be resolved prior to construction.

9.  Landscape contractor shall verify that all plant placement will not negatively affect the plant's survival

or warranty.  Undesirable site conditions shall be brought to the attention of the Landsape Architect

prior to construction.

or acts of vandalism at no cost to the Owner.

10. Existing trees, shrub beds, and ground cover not identified for removal will be protected.

11. Landscape contractor shall submit a written request for the substancial completion of all landscape

and site improvements prior to submitting for final payment.  The submittal shall include an 

as-built drawing of all landscape and irrigation installations and improvements.

Contractor shall provide a two year guarantee of all plant materials. The guarantee begins on the

date of the Landscape Architect's written acceptance of the date determined as sunstancially

complete.  Replacement plant materials shall also have a one year guarantee upon planting.

12.

Landscape contractor shall be responsible for providing an irrigation plan and specification as part

1.

of the scope of work.  Submit a layout plan and specifications for approval by the Landscape

Architect prior to construction.  It is the Landscape contractors responsibility to ensure proper

irrigation coverage and in the appropriate amounts.   

Landscape contractor shall provide the Owner with an as-built plan showing all heads, zones, lines,

2.

and valve box.

Landscape contractor shall provide the Owner with an irrigation system schedule appropriate to the

3.

project conditions and to assure proper plant growth.  A seasonal maintenance schedule will also be

provided.  

Landscape contractor shall insure that the irrigation is set appropriately to provide proper plant

4.

growth without damaging surrounding conditions.  It is the Landscape contractors responsibility to insure

proper surface and subsurface drainage in planted areas.

A 36" wide rock mulch maintenance strip shall be installed around the entire building.

Maintenance strip shall have weed barrier fabric under rock and edged with commercial edging.

All plants to be Minnesota grown and hardy.
Plants to be installed as per standard AAN planting

1.

practices.  Nursery stock shall comply with the current edition of the American Standard for Nursery

Stock, ANSI Z60.1.

No planting will occur until final grading has be completed.

2.

All trees and shrub beds shall be staked and approved prior to installation.

3.

No substitutions will be accepted unless approval is granted by the Landscape Architect prior to

4.

submission of the bid.  

Location adjustments may be needed in the field.  Landscape Architect must be notified.

5.

Plants to be installed as per planting details.

6.

Plants shall be fertilized upon installation with dried bone meal. other approved fertilizer mixed in

7.

with the planting soil as per the manufacturer's instructions, or may be treated for summer and

fall installation with an application of granular 10-0-5, 12oz. per 2.5"cal. tree and 6oz. per shrub.

An additional application of 10-10-10 the following spring in the tree saucer. 

Areas receiving ground covers, perennials, or garden space shall receive a minimum of 18 inches

8.

of planting soil consisting of 4 parts topsoil, 4 parts screened compost, and 1 part sand.

All deciduous trees shall be wrapped in the fall prior to Dec.1 and removed after April 15.9.

Tree wrap shall be asphalt impregnated crepe, wrapped from base of trunk flare to first branches.

Edging shall be black or brown 6" steel, Border King or equivalent.  Edging to be staked in place as10.

per manufacturer specifications.  Edging to have smooth lines, be it either straight or curved.

Perennial areas and garden areas shall be separated from the rock mulch shrub bed by a separate11.

edging strip, have 18 inches of planting soil, and 3 inch deep shredded hardwood mulch cover.  No

weed barrier fabric is to be used in garden areas or around perennials.

12.

Weed barrier shall be 4oz. woven needle punch, black.  Overlapping seams.

13.

Rock mulch, (River Rock 1-1/2 inch) shall be placed a minimum of 4 inches deep.  

14.

Wood mulch shall be double shredded hardwood mulch and placed a minimum of 4 inches deep

15.

around all installed trees (tree rings) and 3 inches deep in all garden area.

Tree rings shall be 6 feet in diameter and be a minimum of 4 inch deep double shredded hardwood.

16.

Mulch shall not come in cintact with tree trunks.

All deciduous plantings shall occur between spring thaw and June 15, or between fall 's first frost

17.

and the first snow or Nov. 15, which every comes first.  Coniferous plantings shall occur after Oct. 1. 

Landscape contractor shall be responsible for determining appropriate planting conditions.  Warranties

18.

No excess materials or debris will be on site.  All hard surfaces will be swept  and washed clean.

19.

shall be enforced regardless of weather and planting conditiond. 

Seed all areas disturbed unless noted as sod.  Seed type shall be selected and submitted to the City

and the contractor and approved by the Landscape Architect prior to installation.

Seed shall be installed as per the distributor's requirements for proper coverage and germination.

Sod shall be TPI certified turfgrass sod, highland sod only.  Sod shall be free from weeds, stones, and

have a strong fiberous root structure and be free from burned or bare spots.

Sod shall be uniform in depth and cut into even rolls.  All sod delivered to the site shall be installed

that day.  All seams shall be laid tight in staggered rows not less than 18 inches apart.  Sod that

abuts curbs or concrete areas shall have a finish grade 1 inch below the hard surface elevation.

Once sod is installed the elevations shall be level.  Sod areas shall be fertilized with a 9-14-7

new lawn starter and applied as per distributor's requirements.

SHEET

N

CAMPION

ENGINEERING

SERVICES, INC.

Architect under the laws of the State of Minnesota.

direct supervision and that I am a duly licensed Landscape

I hereby certify that this plan was prepared by me or under my 

REG. NO.

Debra Brodsho

23849

DATE

01.16.2015

Cynthia Smith Strack
Polygonal Line

Cynthia Smith Strack
Polygonal Line



RESOLUTION  2015-07 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING PRELIMINARY AND 
FINAL PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT PLAN AND 
LOT SPLIT/COMBINATION FOR “THE HAVEN” AT 

600 RAILROAD DRIVE 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Norwood Young America requires approval of lot splits and 
combinations pursuant to Chapter 12 of the Norwood Young America City Code; and 
 
WHEREAS, Chapter 12, Section 1240.02 of the City Code provides for development review 
through a planned unit development overlay process which is intended to facilitate flexibility 
in design and siting of projects in instances where a public benefit is evident including 
preservation of environmentally sensitive areas and planned housing communities such as that 
proposed which includes integrated senior apartments, assisted living units, and memory care 
unit clusters; and 
 
WHEREAS, Peace Villa Inc. (the “Applicant”) has applied for approval of a lot 
split/combination and preliminary/final PUD plan approval to construct a 36,000 square foot, 
two-story structure to house 37 senior assisted living and memory care units on a 6.67 acre 
parcel (the “Use”) on property located at 600 Railroad Drive (the “Property”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the City previously approved a comprehensive plan amendment and rezoning 
request related to the Use; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Norwood Young America Planning Commission considered the 
Applicant’s request for lot split/combination and PUD preliminary and final plan approval to 
locate the Use on the Property during their meeting on January 20, 2015; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Norwood Young America City Council at a regularly meeting on 
January 26, 2015, considered the application materials on file with the City, and the 
recommendation of the Planning Commission.  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of Norwood Young America, 
Carver County, Minnesota, hereby makes and adopts the following findings of fact: 
  

1. Flexibility in site design through the PUD process will preserve environmentally 
sensitive wetland areas. 
 

2. Flexibility in site design through the PUD process will achieve land use and housing 
goals set forth in the Comprehensive Plan related to infill development, cohesive 
neighborhood design, and variety in life cycle housing. 



3. The proposed project is compatible with the neighborhood character as evident with 
the causeway connection to senior apartments (“The Harbor”) located immediately to 
the west of the Property.  
 

4. The proposed project is consistent with goals and policies contained in the 
Comprehensive Plan especially as related to natural resource preservation and 
housing. 
 

5. The subject property is within the current municipal service area and currently 
provided with a full complement of municipal services. Water, sanitary sewer, storm 
water facilities, and public streets are present at the site. The change in use will not 
result in a measurable increase in demand for water or sanitary sewer services.  

 
6. Adequate capacity exists within the current municipal service area relative to the water 

production, treatment, storage, and distribution system as well as the existing sanitary 
sewer collection and treatment system. 

 
7. The subject property abuts property currently used for medium/high density residential 

development.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Council of Norwood Young America, Carver 
County, Minnesota, hereby approves the Applicant’s request for a site plan approval, subject 
to the following conditions: 
 

1. Submittal of a revised set of plans (5 large scale copies) illustrating compliance with 
required conditions of approval.  
 

2. Approval and execution of a Development Agreement with the City of Norwood 
Young America. 
 

3. Compliance with all standards required and as set forth within the memo from 
Consulting Planner, Cynthia Smith Strack, Municipal Development Group, to the 
Planning Commission dated January 13, 2015.  
 

4. Compliance with all recommendations as set forth within a project review memo from 
John Swanson, Bolton & Menk (City Engineer) dated December 31, 2014.  
 

5. Submittal of evidence providing proof of easements in place and the subsequent 
creation of new easements in the event existing easements are found unacceptable or 
not in place. 
 

6. Installation of lock boxes as required by the City of Norwood Young America Fire 
Chief.  Review and approval of a fire suppression plan by the Fire Chief. 
 

7. All signage shall require submittal of a sign permit application and approval by the 
Zoning Administrator and/or Building Official.  



8. Building permits application and approval shall be required prior to any building 
construction or improvements on the property. 
 

9. This approval is subject to all applicable codes, regulations and ordinances, and 
violation thereof shall be grounds for revocation. 
 

10. This approval shall expire two years after date of approval as provided for under 
Chapter 12, Section 1240.02, Subd. 22 of the City Code, unless the Applicant has 
commenced construction of the Use on the Property. 
 

11. Approval of this plan does not approve any future expansion or associated 
improvements on-site.  
 

12. Any modifications not defined as an “adjustment” pursuant to Chapter 12, Section 
1240.02, Subd. 17, shall require approval by the City Council following a 
recommendation by the Planning Commission. 

 

 
Adopted by the City Council this 26th day of January, 2015. 
     

       
     
 ____________________________________  

Tina Diedrick, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________                                   
Diane Frauendienst 
City Clerk/Treasurer 
 



 
 

 
 
 
 
TO:    Honorable Mayor Diedrick and City Council Members 
 
FROM:   Steve Helget, City Administrator 
 
DATE:    January 26, 2015 
 
SUBJECT:   Request for Proposals for Refuse and Recycling Collection 
=============================================================== 
 
According to Chapter 3, Section 320.15 of the City Code, the City may issue no 
more than two (2) solid waste collection licenses and the licenses are valid for 
one year.  Waste Management has already been issued a 2015 Hauler’s 
License.  As directed by the City Council, Request for Proposals was sent out to 
area waste collection service providers.  Three companies were solicited.  They 
are Elite Waste Disposal, Organic Disposal, and Randy’s Environmental Services 
(see enclosed proposals).  Also enclosed is a copy of the RFP that was sent to 
the three companies for them to base their proposal on. 
 
In accordance with the City’s Hauler’s License application, all three companies 
have submitted a license fee payment of $100 and Elite Waste Disposal and 
Organic Disposal provided proof of insurance. 
 
Proposed is to review the proposals and award a Hauler’s License for 2015 to 
one of the companies. 
 
 
Suggestion Motion: 
 
Motion to approve a 2015 Hauler’s License to     . 
 
 
 
 
 





















































 
 
 
 
 
 
To: Honorable Mayor Diedrick 
 Members of the City Council  

Administrator Helget 
 
From: Cynthia Smith Strack, Municipal Development Group, Inc. 
 
Date: January 22, 2015 
 
Re: Revised Family Dollar Site Plan  
 

 
Applicant:   pb2 Architecture & Engineering on behalf of Family Dollar 
     
Subject Property Address: Faxon Road/Industrial Blvd   
 
Property ID: 588490020; Lot 2, Block 1 YA Addition 
 
Zoning Class: C-2 General Commercial District 
 
Request: Site Plan Approval 
 
BACKGROUND 
pb2 Architecture & Engineering has submitted revised plans for demolition 
of an existing site and construction of a new retail facility on Lot 2, Block 1 
YA Addition. The Applicant proposes an 8,330 square foot, single story, slab 
on grade, steel framed retail store.  
 
Section 1210.08, Subd. 2 of the City Code requires site plan 
review/approval for any proposed building or expansion of existing 
structures, unless they are agricultural or single or two-family residential 
uses. Such review requires staff, Planning Commission, and City Council 
consideration.  
 
A representative from Family Dollar has been asked to attend the Council 
meeting as will the City Engineer.  
 
ZONING REGULATIONS  
 
District and Use: 
The property is zoned C-2 General Commercial District. Retail stores are permitted uses within the subject 
district. Surrounding locale is a mix of commercial, industrial, public (school), and residential. The subject 
parcel abuts Faxon Road (east) and Morse Street (northwest). The site will be accessed by Faxon Road.  
 
Site Plan Review: 
 
Building Setbacks: Meets Standards. 
Setback analysis is represented in the Table 1-1. It is noted C-2 District setbacks are greater if the subject 
parcel abuts a residentially zoned property. The subject parcel in this case is surrounded by additional C-2 
zoned parcels.  

25562 Willow Lane ● New Prague, MN 56071● (952) 758-7399 ● Fax: (952) 758-3711 
staff@municipaldevelopmentgroup.com  ●   www.municipaldevelopmentgroup.com 

1 
 

mailto:mdg@bevcomm.net
http://www.municipaldevelopmentgroup.com/


 
Table 1-1 

 

Yard Setback Required Setback Proposed Meets Standard (Y/N) 

Front (facing Faxon) 25 feet 100+ feet Yes 
Side (interior – south)  5 feet 70+ feet Yes 
Side (interior – north) 5 feet 7.5 feet Yes 
Rear (west) 20 feet 28 feet+ Yes 

 
Building Height: Meets Standard. 
Maximum building height allowed in the C-2 General Commercial District is thirty-five (35) feet from average 
grade at the front of the building to the highest point. The structure will be twenty-six (26) feet in height. 
Proposed height meets district requirements.  
 
Lot Standards: Meets Standards.  
Minimum lot size in the C-2 District is 20,000 square feet in area and a minimum width of 200 feet. The lot is 
54,885 sf in area and greater than 200 feet in width.   
 
Maximum lot coverage in the C-2 District is eighty (80) percent. ‘Lot coverage’ is defined as the amount of 
the lot covered by impervious surfaces. The proposed lot coverage following demolition and new 
construction is sixty-four (64) percent a net decrease over what is existing.   
 
Architectural Standards: Meets Standards.   
All new construction within the C-2 General Commercial District must meet the criteria of Section 1245.03 
(Architectural Standards and Guidelines for Commercial and Business Industrial) of the City Code.  
 
The proposed structure is a steel frame with brick/architectural block veneer. Proposed color palette is 
neutral with a small portion of red metal accent material and a red fabric awning.  
 
Parking/Loading/Circulation: Planning Commission Approves of Design, Previous Variance 
The Applicant proposes 31 total parking space, 29 conventional nine by twenty spaces and two handicap 
accessible spots. The original submittal illustrated 33 total parking spaces. The reduction was made at my 
request to accommodate a required 10’ separation between a parking lot and an adjacent residential use 
(Gahl Property). Parking lot surfacing of asphalt and high back perimeter curbing is proposed. Curb stops will 
be placed in stalls abutting sidewalk adjacent to the building.   
 
The Applicant previously requested and received a variance to the number of parking stalls required. Parking 
stalls as proposed meet required standards relating to minimum stall length and width and drive aisle width. 
In the C-2 District, under Section 1250.05 the parking lot must be a minimum of ten (10) feet from any 
property line. Under the original submittal the northern boundary of the eastern parking lot was less than ten 
feet from the property line. Under the revised submittal the required setback is achieved.  
 
The Commission may require screening between the northern residential use and the parking lot. The 
Planning Commission recommends the City Council require a six foot high wooden privacy fence be installed 
on the shared lot line. The Applicant had illustrated a three (3) foot high fence. The Applicant has expressed 
a willingness to raise the fence height to six feet.  
 
Snow storage is proposed to occur in the thirteen (13) parking stalls near Faxon Road. The use of said stalls 
for snow storage would further reduce available parking stalls. The Planning Commission recommends 
require snow storage off site.  
 
 
 

25562 Willow Lane ● New Prague, MN 56071● (952) 758-7399 ● Fax: (952) 758-3711 
staff@municipaldevelopmentgroup.com  ●   www.municipaldevelopmentgroup.com 

2 
 

mailto:mdg@bevcomm.net
http://www.municipaldevelopmentgroup.com/


Access to the site is proposed to be accommodated through shared easements both east and west of the 
site. Proposed shared easement descriptions have been submitted, the City Engineer suggests revision of 
the proposed easements. YA Corporation is supportive of the shared easements. The Planning Commission 
recommends submittal of executed easements as a condition of site plan approval.  
 
Delivery truck traffic route is illustrated in the plan set attached. Please see comments from the City 
Engineer.  
 
Landscaping: Meets Standards. 
Section 1255.05 sets forth landscape requirements for expansions to non-residential buildings. The 
applicable section requires one tree for every 1,000 square feet of additional gross building footprint, 
rounded to the next whole number. The requirement translates to a total of nine trees for the proposed 
project. Planted tress must be a minimum of two and one-half caliper inches for deciduous trees or six feet in 
height for coniferous trees. Types of tree species allowed are listed on the City’s landscaping list.  
 
A landscape plan submitted with the application illustrates six honey locust and three Ohio Buckeye trees will 
be planted at the site. A planting schedule and details are included in the plan. The requirements for tree 
installation are met. 
 
In addition the code requires fencing/screening of refuse areas. Architectural documents illustrate the 
installation of a six foot wooden fence around the refuse area. The fence will be painted on the southwest 
side to match the primary building color. Refuse fencing meets the code requirements.   
 
Lighting: Meets Standards. 
A revised photometric plan was submitted for review with the initial plan set as required under Section 
1245.08, Subd. 1.  
 
Code Section 1245.08, Subd. 2 requires reflected glare or spill light shall not exceed five tenths (0.5) foot-
candle when the source of light abuts any residential or public use parcel, or one (1.0) foot-candle when the 
source of light abuts any commercial or industrial parcel or any public right-of-way measured at one (1) foot 
above the ground at the property line. The photometric plan illustrates light trespass levels are now 
consistent with standards.  
 
Section 1245.08, Subd. 4 limits the height of light poles or standards to twenty-five (25) feet if said 
pole/standard is within one hundred (100) feet of a residence. The lighting plan illustrates twenty-five (25) 
foot light poles.  
 
Cutoff angles for luminaries must be equal to or less than seventy (70) degrees. Full cutoff fixtures are 
proposed.  
 
Section 1245.08, Subd. 6 limits the height of wall-mounted luminaries to eighteen (18) feet above ground 
level or less. Wall packs are to be installed on the building at approximately twelve (12) feet above grade.  
 
Signage: Individual Permit Required. 
Signage shall require a separate permit and is subject to Section 1260 (Signs) of the City Code.  
 
Performance Standards: Meets standards.  
The use shall meet all performance standards set forth in Section 1245.01, Subd. 6 of the City Code. In 
particular, screening of external HVAC equipment. Mechanical pads are illustrated in the site plan with a six 
foot high wooden privacy fence proposed for screening.  
 
 
 
 
 

25562 Willow Lane ● New Prague, MN 56071● (952) 758-7399 ● Fax: (952) 758-3711 
staff@municipaldevelopmentgroup.com  ●   www.municipaldevelopmentgroup.com 

3 
 

mailto:mdg@bevcomm.net
http://www.municipaldevelopmentgroup.com/


ADDITIONAL DEPARTMENT/AGENCY COMMENTS  
 
Public Works: The plans have been forwarded to the Public Works Director Brent Aretz for review and 
comment. Mr. Aretz has reviewed the plans for demolition and construction and finds no issues.  
 
Fire Department: The plans have been forwarded to the Fire Chief Steve Zumberge for review and comment. 
The following have been submitted:  
 

1. A lock box shall be installed by the main entrance. The order form can be picked up at city hall when 
the building permit is obtained.  

 
2. A commercial smoke alarm system is required; alarm system plans shall be submitted for review 

when available. 
 

3. A minimum of four (4) fire extinguishers are required. The type, size, and location of the 
extinguishers will be determined during a pre-inspection walk through. The walk through shall be 
scheduled with the Fire Inspector by the Contractor. 

 
City Engineer: The City Engineer has reviewed plans and submitted a review letter to the City Administrator 
dated January 14, 2015. All comments contained said review letter to City Administrator Steve Helget are 
hereby incorporated by reference. 
 
COMMENTS FROM PUBLIC 
The owners of residential property to the north of the proposed north/south parking lot have noted a shared 
drainage pipe is located in the development area, but the exact location is not known at this time. The 
Planning Commission recommends site plan approval be contingent upon identification of and resolution of 
use and access to said shared drainage facility (between subject parcel and residential lot to the north) to the 
satisfaction of the City Engineer. 
 
RECOMMENDATION  
After review and discussion, the Planning Commission approved a MOTION recommending the Council 
approve the site plan based on several conditions. The conditions are outlined in the attached resolution. 
 
ACTION 
Review of and action on the attached site plan for a Family Dollar store is kindly requested. A RESOLUTION 
is attached for consideration.  
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

1. City Engineer Review Letter dated January 14, 2015. 
2. Site plan. 
3. Sample resolution. 

25562 Willow Lane ● New Prague, MN 56071● (952) 758-7399 ● Fax: (952) 758-3711 
staff@municipaldevelopmentgroup.com  ●   www.municipaldevelopmentgroup.com 

4 
 

mailto:mdg@bevcomm.net
http://www.municipaldevelopmentgroup.com/


 

 

 

 

 

 

January 14, 2015 

 

City of Norwood Young America 

Attn:  Mr. Steve Helget, City Administrator 

310 W. Elm St. 

P.O. Box 59 

Norwood Young America, MN 55368 

 

RE: Family Dollar Store  

 Second Plan Review 

 

Dear Mr. Helget: 

 

We have completed a second engineering review for the above referenced project.  Our review is based upon 

the plans, SWPPP and Stormwater Calculations submitted and prepared by Olsson Associates from 

Springfield Missouri, baring the general title “Family Dollar Store, Faxon Road & Industrial Blvd, Norwood 

Young America, Minnesota”, and dated January 8, 2015, together with submitted easement exhibits and 

descriptions prepared by Windseth Smith Nolting.  

 

Review comments included in our letter dated December 11, 2014 have generally been adequately addressed 

with the exception of the following comments and recommendations. In addition, we offer other comments 

and recommendations that arose from our review of the above referenced submitted information for you 

consideration: 

 
General: 
 

1) Our review assumes the sanitary sewer service, water services, storm sewer, site grading, and 

parking lot paving, etc. are to be privately owned, operated and maintained.  Our review is generally 

confined to work within and associated with Public Right of Way and City owned facilities, as well 

as grading, drainage and erosion control as it relates to neighboring properties and public Right of 

Way, etc.  Should any of the above assumptions be deemed incorrect, additional review comments 

may be appropriate. 

 

2) Copies of all required permits, approvals, and agreements, such as NPDES, CCWMO, etc. shall be 

submitted for the project records, prior to commencing construction. 

 

3) Temporary easement descriptions and exhibits for proposed work off site, have been submitted, and 

appear to be correct from a survey standpoint.  Agreements for said easements including Grantor and 

Grantee rights, sunset dates, etc. have not been submitted. It is recommended the City attain copies 

of such for the project files. 

 

 

 

 

 



City of Norwood Young America 

RE: Family Dollar Store 

January 14, 2015 

Page 2 

 
 

 

Access, Ingress / Egress, Faxon Road: 

 
1) The excavation area within the pavement of Faxon road likely will disturb existing striping.  Existing 

striping in the area generally consists of: 

a. 4” Solid White Line  

b. 4” Solid Double Yellow Line 

c. 12” Solid Yellow Line (Gore Area Striping) 

d. Left Turn Directional Arrows 

 

All disturbed striping shall be replaced in-kind with epoxy paint and drop on beads, in accordance 

with current MnDOT Specifications, and as directed by the City Engineer. 

 

2) Shared Access easement descriptions and exhibits for the proposed shared access and parking area, 

have been submitted. We offer the following comments for consideration: 

a. There is a parking area located on the south side of the site contiguous with the shared 

entrance, just west of the proposed store parking lot entrance that is located on Owner 

property.  This area is not encumbered by the Shared Access Easement (Easement A).  If it is 

intended that the property to the south is allowed to use this area for parking, it may be 

prudent to include this area in an easement, and/or include the intended usage rights in the 

agreements. 

 

b.  Agreements for said easements including Grantor and Grantee rights, etc. have not been 

submitted. It is recommended the City attain copies of such for the project files. 

 

3) Turning templates for truck movement into and out of the site have been submitted.  We offer the 

following comments for consideration: 

a. The turning movements for truck traffic submitted only account for truck access into and out 

of the site via Industrial Blvd, by crossing Faxon Road. 

b. The truck movements also indicate potential truck access through the offsite parking lot to 

Morse Street. 

c. It is our understanding that Morse Street, Faxon Road, and Industrial Blvd are all classified 

as truck routes. The most likely truck access to the site is via Faxon Road from the north or 

south, as Faxon Road has generally direct access from TH 5 and US 212, via designated 

truck routes, from both east bound and west bound directions.  Additional turning movement 

templates for truck traffic should be submitted indicating traffic movements from north 

bound and south bound Faxon Road, as well as any potential movements to and from Morse 

Street. 

d. Considering our previous review comments, and “c” above, it is recommended consideration 

be given to revising the entrance configuration by widening the entrance width, and 

flattening curve radii, etc. to allow more efficient truck traffic ingress and egress to and from 

the site. 

e. Revisions to existing striping configurations may be required to accommodate the proposed 

traffic movements. 

 

4) To date we have not received any additional information regarding our previous recommendation the 

City consider requiring a Warranty Bond or other Surety in the amount of 125% of the total 

construction cost for all work located within public Right of Way. 

 

 



City of Norwood Young America 

RE: Family Dollar Store 

January 14, 2015 

Page 3 

 
 

 

 

Sanitary Sewer and Watermain: 
 

1) The plan does not include City Standard Details for utility work located within public right of way.  

All sanitary sewer, watermain, and storm sewer improvements located in public right of way shall 

use City standard components, such as tapping saddles, curb boxes, gate valves, tracer wire and 

access boxes, etc.  It is recommended these details be included in the plans.  Details are available 

from our office upon request. 

 

2) The plan indicates the abandonment of existing sanitary sewer and water services.  The method of 

abandonment is not shown on the plan as requested in our previous review comments. 

 

3) The proposed method of connection to existing City utilities does not appear to be defined on the 

plans, as requested in our previous review comments. 

 

4) Sanitary sewer service elevations do not appear to be shown on the plan.  The proposed sewer 

service alignment is located approximately 5’ off the northerly property line.  Open excavation will 

likely require construction activity on the neighboring property to the north.  Temporary and or 

permanent easements may be required.  In addition, proposed invert elevations should be shown on 

the plan. 

 

5) To date, we have not received any comments from the Fire Chief. 

 

Drainage and Grading: 
 

1) The revised Plans, SWPPP, and Stormwater Calculations should be submitted to CCWMO for 

review.  To date, we have not received any comments from CCWMO. 

 

2) Submitted SWPPP appears to still include information from another project, and is inconsistent with 

the submitted plans.  For example, the SWPPP references the installation of infiltration basins, and 

dry detention basins which are not shown on the plans.  A revised SWPPP shall be submitted 

consistent with the proposed Plans, and CCWMO, MPCA Rules. 

 

3) The plans have been revised to include a roof drain discharge to the north along the northeasterly 

property line.  Additional swale grading along the lot line and to the west is recommended to ensure 

concentrated runoff to this location does not result in high flow condition flooding into the 

neighboring property to the east. 

 

4) The plans have been revised to include catch basins in the east parking area that discharge to the 

existing catch basin in Faxon Road.  We offer the following comments for consideration: 

a. The invert elevation of the existing catch basin is not shown on the plan.  The existing invert 

should be shown, and the proposed storm sewer designed to match 0.8 points or top of pipe 

with the existing discharge pipe.   

b. It appears the cover over the proposed pipe at the existing catch basin is approximately 0.7’.  

Constructability at the connection point is likely complicated at this depth.  In addition, lack 

of cover over the pipe under the sidewalk may result in pipe load concerns from plowing 

equipment, and presents a potential for frost heaving.  Considering this, the inlet pipe shall 

be installed as deep as possible in accordance with “a” above. 

 



City of Norwood Young America 

RE: Family Dollar Store 

January 14, 2015 

Page 4 

 
 

 

c. The method of connection to the catch basin is not shown on the plans.  Connection to the 

existing catch basin shall be soil tight. 

 

Revised Plans as discussed herein, shall be submitted for further review. 

 

We are available to discuss this matter at your convenience. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

BOLTON & MENK, INC. 

 
John K. Swanson 
 
 

Cc:   Cynthia Smith-Strack, MGD, Inc. 

Kreg Schmidt, Bolton & Menk 

Jake Saulsbury, Bolton & Menk 

Paul Moline, CCWMO 

 



E

G

G

ST

T T

T

W

W

S

W

S
S

PAVEMENT MARKING NOTES:

PAVING LEGEND

SOLVENTBORNE APPLICATION RECOMMENDATION

PROPOSED BUILDING
F.F.E. 995.50

N
O

R
W

O
O

D
 Y

O
U

N
G

 A
M

ER
IC

A,
 M

IN
N

ES
O

TA
20

14
.0

10
6

C4OA PROJECT #014-2805

LEGEND

E

G

S

ST

T

W

T

JO
B 

N
U

M
BE

R
:

w
w

w
.o

ac
on

su
lti

ng
.c

om
TE

L 
 4

17
.8

90
.8

80
2

FA
X 

 4
17

.8
90

.8
80

5
55

0 
St

. L
ou

is
 S

t.
Sp

rin
gf

ie
ld

, M
O

 6
58

06

Know what's

R

PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER
I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAN, SPECIFICATION, OR REPORT WAS
PREPARED BY ME OR UNDER MY DIRECT SUPERVISION AND THAT I AM A
DULY LICENSED PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER UNDER THE LAWS OF THE
STATE OF MINNESOTA.

PRINT NAME: RYAN VAL JEPPSON

SIGNATURE: ________________________________

DATE: 11.25.2014 LICENSE NO. 50150

MORSE STREET NORTH

PARCEL "E"
OWNER: WILLIAM & JEAN M. GAHL

PA
R

C
EL

 "E
"

EA
SE

M
EN

T 
AR

EA

INDUSTRIAL
BLVD

FA
XO

N
 R

O
AD

 N
O

R
TH

”
”

”

”

”

”

PAVEMENT NOTES:



RESOLUTION  2015-04 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A SITE PLAN FOR A 
FAMILY DOLLAR RETAIL STORE AT FAXON ROAD 

AND INDUSTRIAL BOULEVARD  
(LOT 2, BLOCK 1 YA ADDITION) 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Norwood Young America requires approval of a site plan pursuant to 
Section 1210.08 of the Norwood Young America City Code; and 
 
WHEREAS, pb2 Architecture & Engineering on behalf of Family Dollar (the “Applicant”) 
applied for approval of a site plan to construct an approximate 8,330 square foot single story, 
slab on grade, steel framed retail store (the “Use”) at the property described as Lot 2, Block 1 
YA Addition (the “Property”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Norwood Young America Planning Commission considered the 
Applicant’s request for site plan approval to locate the Use on the Property during their 
meeting on January 20, 2015; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Norwood Young America City Council at a regularly meeting on 
January 26, 2015, considered the application materials on file with the City, and the 
recommendation of the Planning Commission.  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of Norwood Young America, 
Carver County, Minnesota, hereby makes and adopts the following findings of fact: 
  

1.  The subject property is zoned C-2, General Commercial District. 
2.  The Use, subject to certain conditions listed below, appears to be consistent with the 

intent of the Zoning Ordinance for properties within the C-2 District.  
3.  The Use, subject to certain conditions listed below, appears to be consistent with the 

goals and policies set forth in the City of Norwood Young America Comprehensive 
Plan for properties in the C-2 District. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Council of Norwood Young America, Carver 
County, Minnesota, hereby approves the Applicant’s request for a site plan approval, subject 
to the following conditions: 
 

1. Submittal of a revised set of plans (2 large scale copies) illustrating compliance with 
required conditions of approval.  
 



2. Compliance with all standards required and as set forth within the memo from 
Consulting Planner, Cynthia Smith Strack, Municipal Development Group, dated 
January 14, 2015.  
 

3. Compliance with all recommendations as set forth within the memo from John 
Swanson, Bolton & Menk (City Engineer) dated January 14, 2015.  
 

4. Compliance with recommendations from the City of Norwood Young America Fire 
Chief.  
 

5. Snow storage to occur off-site.  
 

6. Revision of the landscape plan to illustrate installation of a six (6) foot high privacy 
fence in the required parking lot setback adjacent to the existing residential use 
(northeast). Said privacy fence shall be comprised of wood, placed entirely on the 
Applicant’s property and have the finished side facing toward the neighboring 
residential use.  
 

7. Resolution of use of and access to a shared drainage facility (between subject parcel 
and the residential lot immediately to the north) to the satisfaction of the City 
Engineer. 
 

8. Submittal of executed shared access easement applicable to Lots 1 and 3 of Block 1 
YA Addition. 
 

9. All signage shall require submittal of a sign permit application and approval by the 
Zoning Administrator and/or Building Official.  
 

10. Building permits shall be required prior to any building construction or improvements 
on the property. 
 

11. This site plan approval is subject to all applicable codes, regulations and ordinances, 
and violation thereof shall be grounds for revocation. 
 

12. This approval shall expire one (1) year after date of approval unless the Applicant has 
commenced construction of the proposed use on the Property. 
 

13. Approval of this site plan does not approve any future expansion or associated 
improvements on site.  
 

14. Any modifications not defined as “minor” pursuant to Section 1210.08, Subd. 4, shall 
require separate site plan approval. 

 
 
 
 
 



Adopted by the City Council this 26th day of January, 2015. 
     

       
     
 ____________________________________  

Tina Diedrick, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________                                   
Diane Frauendienst 
City Clerk/Treasurer 
 


























































	NYA15_CC_Packet_Haven_Rezoning_01 26 15.pdf
	NYA15_Mem_CC_Haven_Rezoning
	From: Cynthia Smith Strack, Municipal Development Group, Inc.
	REQUEST
	The City has received a request to rezone 6.67 (approximate) acres from C-2 General Commercial to R-4 Multiple Family in conjunction with a development request known as “The Haven”. The Haven development proposes 37 units of senior assisted living/mem...



	NYA15_CC_Packet_Haven_Comp_Plan_Amend_01 26 15.pdf
	NYA15_Mem_CC_Haven_Comprehensive_Plan_Amendment_Request
	From: Cynthia Smith Strack, Municipal Development Group, Inc.
	BACKGROUND
	The City has received a request to amend the Comprehensive Plan to accommodate a project entitled “The Haven At Peace Village”. The Applicant requests the City consider a land use change to the 2008 Comprehensive Plan allowing the subject parcels to b...
	The Haven At Peace Village project consists of 37 assisted living/memory care units within a 36,000 sf two-story structure. The facility will employ approximately ten people. The Haven structure is to be physically connected by a single story causeway...
	The City of NYA is within the Twin Cities Metropolitan Council regional planning area. As such, any amendment to the Comprehensive Plan must be submitted to the TCMC for review/approval following City Council review/authorization of submittal. Please ...
	PUBLIC HEARING REQUIRED
	Consideration of an amendment to the Comprehensive Plan requires a public hearing. Accordingly, a notice of public hearing was posted, published in the NYA Times, and mailed to property owners within 350 feet of the subject parcel. The NYA Planning Co...
	Comments for and against the proposal were solicited, but none were received.


	Location Map
	Comp Plan Amendment Haven

	NYA15_CC_Packet_Haven_PUD_01 26 15.pdf
	NYA15_Mem_CC_Haven_PUD
	From: Cynthia Smith Strack, Municipal Development Group, Inc.
	BACKGROUND
	Section 1240.02 of the City Code provides for development review through a planned unit development overlay process. The process is intended to facilitate flexibility in design and siting of projects in instances where a public benefit is evident.
	The PUD process in NYA is enabled through an overlay district versus rezoning to a planned unit development. This means the underlying zoning district allowed uses generally remain intact but may be blended. In addition performance standards may be al...
	The PUD process may or may not involve platting or replatting of property. In the event platting is proposed standards relating to subdivision of property (City Code Chapter 11) are also considered during the review process.


	Engineering review letter
	13112_Haven_Color Perspectives
	13112_Haven - Sheet - A1-1 - SITE PLAN
	Landscape Plan

	NYA15_CC_Packet_Family_Dollar_Site_Plan_01 26 15.pdf
	NYA15_Mem_CC_Site_Plan_Approval_Family_Dollar
	From: Cynthia Smith Strack, Municipal Development Group, Inc.
	BACKGROUND
	pb2 Architecture & Engineering has submitted revised plans for demolition of an existing site and construction of a new retail facility on Lot 2, Block 1 YA Addition. The Applicant proposes an 8,330 square foot, single story, slab on grade, steel fram...
	Section 1210.08, Subd. 2 of the City Code requires site plan review/approval for any proposed building or expansion of existing structures, unless they are agricultural or single or two-family residential uses. Such review requires staff, Planning Com...
	A representative from Family Dollar has been asked to attend the Council meeting as will the City Engineer.


	Engineering review
	Site Plan




